
1

Agenda
  

Contact Officer: Ron Schrieber, Democratic Services Officer

Tel: 01235 422524

E-mail: ron.schrieber@southandvale.gov.uk

Date: 15 March 2019

Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

Joint Audit and Governance Committee

WILL BE HELD ON MONDAY 25 MARCH 2019  AT 6.30 PM

NORTHBOURNE ROOM, NORTHBOURNE ROOM, DIDCOT CIVIC HALL, 
BRITWELL ROAD, DIDCOT OX11 7JN

Members of the Committee:
South Oxfordshire District Council
Ian White (Co-Chairman)
Toby Newman
Alan Thompson
John Walsh

Vale of White Horse District Council
Simon Howell (Co-Chairman)
Mike Badcock
Debby Hallett
Chris Palmer

Preferred Substitutes
South Oxfordshire District Council
Joan Bland
David Nimmo-Smith

Vale of White Horse District Council
Yvonne Constance
Helen Pighills
Judy Roberts
Henry Spencer
Reg Waite
Catherine Webber

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact 
the officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as 
possible before the meeting.

Public Document Pack



2

1 Apologies for absence  

To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.  

2 Minutes  (Pages 4 - 8)

To adopt and sign as a correct record the Joint Audit and Governance Committee 
minutes of the meeting held on 28 January 2019.  

3 Declarations of interest  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.   

4 Urgent business and chairman's announcements  

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent, and to receive any announcements from the chairman.  

5 Public participation  

To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have 
registered to speak.  

6 2017/18 Year end audit: lessons learned and corrective action  

To consider the report of the head of finance (to follow).

7 Statement of accounts 2018/19  

To consider the report of the head of finance (to follow).

8 Annual report on the councillors' code of conduct  (Pages 9 - 
16)

To consider the report of the monitoring officer (attached).

9 Review of complaints received during 2017/18  (Pages 17 - 38)

To consider the report of the head of corporate services (attached).

10 South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse audit planning 
report 2018/19  (Pages 39 - 77)

To consider the report of the external auditor (attached).



3

11 Corporate fraud and cyber security risk review  (Pages 78 - 92)

To consider the report of the corporate fraud officer (attached)

12 Internal audit activity report quarter four 2018/2019  (Pages 93 - 
96)

To consider the report of the internal audit manager (attached).

13 Internal audit management report quarter four 2018/2019  
(Pages 97 - 104)

To consider the report of the internal audit manager (attached).

14 Internal audit annual plan 2019/20  (Pages 105 - 115)

To consider the report of the internal audit manager (attached).

15 Work programme  (Pages 116 - 121)

To consider the work programme (attached)

16 Programme governance review  (Pages 122 - 128)

To consider the report of the acting deputy chief executive – transformation and 
operations (attached)

17 Exclusion of the public  

To consider whether to exclude members of the press and public from the meeting 
for the following item of business under Part 1 of Schedule 12A Section 100A(4) of 
the Local Government Act 1972 and as amended by the Local Government (Access 
to Information) (Variation) Order 2006 on the grounds that: 
(i) it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 

1-7 Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and 
(ii) the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 

disclosing the information.  

EXEMPT INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 100A(4) OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
ACT 1972

18 Programme governance review - confidential appendix  (Page 
129)

MARGARET REED

Head of Legal and Democratic 



1

Minutes

OF A MEETING OF THE

Joint Audit and Governance Committee

HELD ON MONDAY 28 JANUARY 2019 AT 6.30 PM MEETING ROOM 1, 
135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, MILTON, OX14 4SB

Present 
Members:

South Oxfordshire District Councillors: John Walsh, Ian White (Co-Chairman acting as 
Vice-chairman) and David-Nimmo-Smith (in place of Toby Newman)

Vale of White Horse District Councillors: Mike Badcock, Debby Hallett, Simon Howell (Co-
Chairman acting as Chairman) and Chris Palmer

Apologies:
Toby Newman tendered apologies. 

Officers 
Simon Hewings, Victoria Hughes, William Jacobs, Ian Matten, Adrianna Partridge, Ron 
Schrieber and Mark Stone

Also present: 
Emily Hunt (Capita) and Kevin Suter (EY)

32 Minutes 

RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the committee meetings held on 27 September 
and 15 October 2018 as correct records and agree that the Chairman signs them as such.

33 Declarations of interest 

None.

34 Urgent business and chairman's announcements 

The chairman reported that he and the co-chairman had agreed to defer consideration of 
the “lessons learned” report on the Statement of Accounts, scheduled for this meeting, to 
the March committee. 

Public Document Pack

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



2

35 Public participation 

Gene Webb and Paul Mayhew-Archer had registered to speak on Agenda Item 14, 
Programme governance review (see Minute 44 below).

36 External auditor's annual audit letters 2017/18 

The committee considered the external auditor’s annual audit letters for 2017/18 and noted 
that an unqualified opinion had been issued on both South Oxfordshire and Vale of White 
Horse District Councils’ financial statements.

Subject to the approval of Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd., the external auditor had 
agreed fee variations of £25,222 and £20,871 in 2017/18 for South and Vale respectively, 
to take account of the additional audit work required as a result of material amendments to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements and the additional Value for 
Money risks identified.

RESOLVED: to 

1. note the external auditor’s annual audit letters for 2017/18.

2. request the chief executive to take appropriate action to recover the costs of the 
external auditor’s additional work.

37 External auditor’s report of the certification of claims and returns 
2017/18. 

The committee considered the external auditor’s certification of claims and returns annual 
report for 2017/18 and noted that there had been minor amendments to South 
Oxfordshire’s housing benefits subsidy claims and no significant issues with either 
councils’ claims.

RESOLVED: to note the external auditor’s certification of claims and returns annual report 
for 2017/18.

38 Internal audit activity report quarter three 2018/19 

The committee considered the internal audit manager’s report on internal audit activity 
during the third quarter of 2018/19. This summarised the outcomes of recent audit activity.

Five audits had been completed during the quarter, one of which had received limited 
assurance.

Brown Bins 2018/19

The committee considered the main findings and recommendations of the internal audit 
report. Officers attended to provide further updates and answer members’ questions, 
however, members expressed concern that there was no Capita representative present to 
answer questions.

Officers were requested to circulate information as to why the sums set out in paragraph 
5.2.2 of the report had been written off.

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



3

Members sought assurances that Recommendation 2b regarding correctly updating new 
garden waste fees had been implemented and were informed that this would be reported 
back to the committee in March, following completion of the follow up audit.

Overdue recommendations

The committee noted the current timetable for relaunching the recommendations 
database.

RESOLVED: to note the internal audit activity report for the third quarter of 2018/19.

39 Internal audit management report quarter three 2018/19 

The committee considered the internal audit manager’s management report on internal 
audit for the third quarter of 2018/19.

The committee was advised that, as of 4 December 2018, a corporate fraud officer had 
been engaged for a period of four months to carry out an independent assessment of the 
current state of the corporate fraud and cyber security risks across both councils.

In January 2019, two auditors had taken on new roles within the councils. An agency 
auditor had been appointed on 16 January for 6 weeks whilst recruitment took place. 
However, the vacancies would impact upon the delivery of the 2018/19 audit plan.

RESOLVED: to note the internal audit management report for the third quarter of 2018/19.

40 Treasury management mid-year monitoring report 2018/19 

The committee considered the head of finance’s report that monitored performance of the 
council’s treasury management function for the first half of 2018/19.

The committee was informed that the investment income received by South Oxfordshire 
was below the budget target due to lower than expected interest rates during this period.  
Some details of budgeted investment income for Vale of White Horse had been omitted 
from the report but would be included in an addendum to Cabinet.

RECOMMENDED to Cabinets to recommend Councils to: 

1. note the treasury management mid-year monitoring report 2018/19; 

2. record that the committee is satisfied that the treasury management activities are 
carried out in accordance with the treasury management strategy and policy; and 

3. request the Cabinets to consider the comments of this committee and recommend the 
Councils to approve the report.

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



4

41 South Oxfordshire District Council treasury management and 
investment strategy 2019/20 

The committee considered the head of finance’s report that set out South Oxfordshire 
District Council’s treasury management and investment strategy for 2019/20 to 2021/22.  

The proposed strategy had been compiled in line with revisions to the Chartered Institute 
of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Prudential Code and Treasury Management 
Code of Practice.

RECOMMENDED to Cabinet to recommend Council to: 

1. approve the treasury management strategy 2019/20 set out in appendix A to the head 
of finance’s report; 

2. approve the prudential indicators and limits for 2019/20 to 2021/22 as set out in table 
2, appendix A to the head of finance’s report; 

3. approve the annual investment strategy 2019/20 set out in appendix A (paragraphs 40 
to 81) and the lending criteria detailed in table 5 to the head of finance’s report.  

42 Vale of White Horse District Council treasury management and 
investment strategy 2019/20 

The committee considered the head of finance’s report that set out Vale of White Horse 
District Council’s treasury management and investment strategy for 2019/20 to 2021/22.  

The proposed strategy had been compiled in line with revisions to CIPFA’s Prudential 
Code and Treasury Management Code of Practice.

RECOMMENDED to Cabinet to recommend Council to: 

1. approve the treasury management strategy 2019/20 set out in appendix A to the head 
of finance’s report; 

2. approve the prudential indicators and limits for 2019/20 to 2021/22 as set out in table 
2, appendix A to the head of finance’s report; 

3. approve the annual investment strategy 2019/20 set out in appendix A (paragraphs 41 
to 82) and the lending criteria detailed in table 5 to the head of finance’s report.  

43 Work programme 

The committee reviewed its work programme and noted that, in addition to the items 
already scheduled for the 25 March meeting, there would be three further reports:

 “lessons learned” report on the Statement of Accounts 
 review of corporate fraud and cyber security risks
 programme governance review – confirmed findings and action plan

Accordingly, the committee requested democratic services to identify possible dates for an 
additional meeting, in consultation with the co-chairmen. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



5

44 Programme governance review 

The committee considered the report of the head of corporate services which set out the 
background to the establishment of the programme governance review and updated the 
committee on progress to date.

The committee was advised that, due to a number of governance control weaknesses 
being brought to the attention of the committee, the co-chairmen commissioned the review 
with the agreement of the council’s external auditors and the full support of the chief 
executive.  The terms of reference for the review were attached as appendix to the report.

The project team were aiming to complete 8-10 reviews by the end of March 2019, with 
confirmed findings and an action plan reported to the March 25 committee meeting.

Gene Webb addressed the committee and reiterated previously expressed concerns about 
the decision to allocate S106 funding to the Wessex Leisure Centre and an individual 
Cabinet member decision to enable the use of land at Mably Way.

Paul Mayhew-Archer addressed the committee and congratulated the co-chairmen and 
senior officers on their decision to undertake this review.  However, he expressed concern 
about what he perceived to be a lack of transparency and independence relating to the 
review.

In response the chairman highlighted the involvement of the council’s external auditors in 
the review and stated that as much information as possible would be put in the public 
domain.

RESOLVED: to note the report. 

45 Exclusion of the public 

RESOLVED: to exclude members of the press and public from the meeting for the 
following items of business under Part 1 of Schedule 12A Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006 on the grounds that: 

i. it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and

ii. the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information.

46 Programme governance review - Confidential appendix 

The appendix was noted.

The meeting closed at 8.10 pm

Chairman Date

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of the Monitoring Officer
Author: Margaret Reed
Telephone: 01235 422550
E-mail: margaret.reed@southandvale.gov.uk

DATE: 25 March 2019

Annual Report on the Councillors’ Code 
of Conduct for 2017-18

Recommendation(s)

To note the annual report on the councillors’ code of conduct for the 2017-18 
municipal year.

Purpose of Report
1. The purpose of this report is to update the Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

on code of conduct work during 2017-18, including the number of district and 
parish code of conduct complaints received. The report also includes information 
on significant potential changes to the code of conduct regime.

Strategic Objectives 
2. High standards of conduct underpin all of the councils’ work and the achievement 

of both councils’ strategic objectives.

Background
3. District councils have direct responsibility for standards in public life, not only for 

our district councillors, but also for all parish councillors in our districts. In 2012, 
the Oxfordshire Secretaries and Monitoring Officers Group recommended a code 
of conduct which has been adopted by all of the district councils, the county 
council and almost all of the parish councils across both districts. At the current 
time, no changes are proposed but potential national changes are explained in 
paragraphs 16 and 17 of the report.

4. The code of conduct is based on the seven principles of public life, or “Nolan” 
principles, which are: Selflessness, Integrity, Objectivity, Accountability, 
Openness, Honesty and Leadership.

5. Although the councils have the responsibility for maintaining these standards, we 
are currently very limited in terms of sanctions, particularly when it comes to 

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 9

Agenda Item 8



parish councillors. This, together with the fact that a number of parish complaints 
are between councillors and/or political activists, and the need to balance the 
public interest with the public purse, means that we often take a pro-active and/or 
alternative way to resolve disputes. This includes:

 giving advice to councillors/clerks which enables them to resolve their own 
difficulties or to use an alternative form of dispute resolution

 requiring evidence of an attempt to resolve the matter informally or a 
reasonable explanation of why this has not been explored before a formal 
complaint is progressed

 imposing a “high bar” when it comes to disputes between councillors and/or 
political activists

 being clear when a matter is not a code of conduct matter and referring 
complainants to the relevant organisation such as the Oxfordshire Association 
of Local Councils

 offering alternative forms of dealing with conflict, such as mediation, police 
involvement or training (after we have made an assessment of the 
circumstances)

6. On most occasions alternative interventions or advice are offered before a formal 
complaint is received, on others we use the alternatives as a form of “local 
resolution”.

7. The procedures were last ratified by the Joint Audit and Governance Committee in 
March 2016 and are operating well. No changes are proposed at the present time 
but a further report will be brought to the committee once the way forward on the 
potential national changes is known.

8. The vast majority of code of conduct work (apart from registers of interests) is 
done informally and consists of giving advice over the telephone or by email. We 
do not routinely record this work but it is reasonably significant and is often 
valuable in avoiding more substantial problems later on.

9. Each council retains the services of two “independent persons” to assist in 
maintaining and promoting high ethical standards in the district councils and the 
parish councils in South and Vale. The role of “independent person” was created 
by the Localism Act 2011. The independent persons both provide advice to the 
subject councillor and guidance to the monitoring officer. The terms of office of the 
current independent persons expire on 30 September 2019 and a recruitment 
exercise to fill the roles for the period 1 October 2019 – 30 September 2023 will 
commence in summer 2019.

10. We do record all complaints which come in to us formally (we insist that all are 
made on a complaint form that provides all the necessary information, unless 
there is a proper reason why this cannot be done). 

11. A short summary of the formal complains dealt with in the municipal year 2017-18 
municipal year are detailed in an appendix to the report

12. There were no particular trends arising from these complaints.

Register of Interests
13. All councillors and co-optees at both district and parish level, are required to 

submit a register of their interests to the Monitoring Officer which is publicly 
available. All of these registers are signed off and published by the district council. 
Councillors and co-optees are also required to keep their registers up to date. The Page 10

Agenda Item 8



democratic services team requests these documents from parish clerks (on behalf 
of their councillors) as well as from district councillors after election/co-option and 
sends reminders bi-annually for amendments to be registered.

14. There is an option for councillors/co-optees to request that their addresses and 
similar identifiers are removed from the public register if this is “sensitive 
information”. Over the past year these requests have become more frequent. The 
Monitoring Officer has granted all requests in order to reduce potential risks to 
both the council and to individual councillors. With current trends in making 
contact (via email, messaging and social media) home addresses are becoming 
less relevant as a means of the public contacting a councillor. The original forms 
have the home addresses, but are not put in the public domain. 

Potential changes in legislation
15. On 30 January 2019, the Committee on Standards in Public Life published its 

review report on local government ethical standards. The full report is available at 
this link: 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attac

hment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Gove
rnment_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF 

16. The report recommends the following changes to the code of conduct regime:

 The Local Government Association should create an updated model code 
of conduct, in consultation with representative bodies of councillors and 
officers of all tiers of local government.

 The government should ensure that candidates standing for or accepting 
public offices are not required publicly to disclose their home address. The 
Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 
should be amended to clarify that a councillor does not need to register 
their home address on an authority’s register of interests.

 Councillors should be presumed to be acting in an official capacity in their 
public conduct, including statements on publicly-accessible social media. 
Section 27(2) of the Localism Act 2011 should be amended to permit local 
authorities to presume so when deciding upon code of conduct breaches.

 Section 27(2) of the Localism Act 2011 should be amended to state that a 
local authority’s code of conduct applies to a member when they claim to 
act, or give the impression they are acting, in their capacity as a member or 
as a representative of the local authority.

 The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 
2012 should be amended to include: unpaid directorships; trusteeships; 
management roles in a charity or a body of a public nature; and 
membership of any organisations that seek to influence opinion or public 
policy

 Local authorities should be required to establish a register of gifts and 
hospitality, with councillors required to record any gifts and hospitality 
received over a value of £50, or totalling £100 over a year from a single 
source. This requirement should be included in an updated model code of 
conduct.

Page 11

Agenda Item 8

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF


 Section 31 of the Localism Act 2011 should be repealed, and replaced with 
a requirement that councils include in their code of conduct that a councillor 
must not participate in a discussion or vote in a matter to be considered at 
a meeting if they have any interest, whether registered or not, “if a member 
of the public, with knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard 
the interest as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your consideration 
or decision-making in relation to that matter”

 The Localism Act 2011 should be amended to require that Independent 
Persons are appointed for a fixed term of two years, renewable once.

 The Local Government Transparency Code should be updated to provide 
that the view of the Independent Person in relation to a decision on which 
they are consulted should be formally recorded in any decision notice or 
minutes.

 A local authority should only be able to suspend a councillor where the 
authority’s Independent Person agrees both with the finding of a breach 
and that suspending the councillor would be a proportionate sanction.

 Local authorities should provide legal indemnity to Independent Persons if 
their views or advice are disclosed. The government should require this 
through secondary legislation if needed.

 Local authorities should be given the discretionary power to establish a 
decision-making standards committee with voting independent members 
and voting members from dependent parishes, to decide on allegations and 
impose sanctions.

 Councillors should be given the right to appeal to the Local Government 
Ombudsman if their local authority imposes a period of suspension for 
breaching the code of conduct.

 The Local Government Ombudsman should be given the power to 
investigate and decide upon an allegation of a code of conduct breach by a 
councillor, and the appropriate sanction, on appeal by a councillor who has 
had a suspension imposed. The Ombudsman’s decision should be binding 
on the local authority.

 The Local Government Transparency Code should be updated to require 
councils to publish annually: the number of code of conduct complaints they 
receive; what the complaints broadly relate to (e.g. bullying; conflict of 
interest); the outcome of those complaints, including if they are rejected as 
trivial or vexatious; and any sanctions applied.

 Local authorities should be given the power to suspend councillors, without 
allowances, for up to six months.

 The government should clarify if councils may lawfully bar councillors from 
council premises or withdraw facilities as sanctions. These powers should 
be put beyond doubt in legislation if necessary.

 The criminal offences in the Localism Act 2011 relating to Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests should be abolished.

 Parish council clerks should hold an appropriate qualification, such as 
those provided by the Society of Local Council Clerks.

Page 12

Agenda Item 8



 Section 27(3) of the Localism Act 2011 should be amended to state that 
parish councils must adopt the code of conduct of their principal authority, 
with the necessary amendments, or the new model code.

 Section 28(11) of the Localism Act 2011 should be amended to state that 
any sanction imposed on a parish councillor following the finding of a 
breach is to be determined by the relevant principal authority.

 The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2015 should be amended to provide that disciplinary 
protections for statutory officers extend to all disciplinary action, not just 
dismissal.

 The Local Government Transparency Code should be updated to provide 
that local authorities must ensure that their whistleblowing policy specifies a 
named contact for the external auditor alongside their contact details, which 
should be available on the authority’s website.

 Councillors should be listed as ‘prescribed persons’ for the purposes of the 
Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998.

 Councillors should be required to attend formal induction training by their 
political groups. National parties should add such a requirement to their 
model group rules.

 Local Government Association corporate peer reviews should also include 
consideration of a local authority’s processes for maintaining ethical 
standards.

17. It is not yet clear whether the government will accept all of these 
recommendations and, if so, what will be the timetable for implementation. A 
further report will be brought to the committee and the Councils when any 
changes to the current arrangements are required.

Issues

18. During the course of the year, Vale Council considered the issue of publication of 
information on complaints and it was noted that the issue would be included in this 
annual report.

19. As noted in paragraph 16 of this report, legislative changes may require councils 
to publish annually: the number of code of conduct complaints they receive; what 
the complaints broadly relate to (e.g. bullying; conflict of interest); the outcome of 
those complaints, including if they are rejected as trivial or vexatious; and any 
sanctions applied. It would be helpful to know what new legislative requirements 
will be introduced on publishing individual code of conduct complaints before 
making any changes to current procedures. In the meantime, the Monitoring 
Officer will consider any public or media requests for information on individual 
complaints on their merits and in accordance with freedom of information and data 
protection legislation.

Financial Implications

20. Code of conduct work and the administration of code of conduct complaints is met 
from existing budgets. The Independent Persons undertake their role voluntarily 
although occasional expenses and training costs are met. No external 
investigators have been engaged during 2017-18. The potential costs of the 

Page 13

Agenda Item 8



proposed changes to the code of conduct regime will be assessed when the way 
forward is clearer.

Legal Implications

21. The Localism Act 2011 requires councils to have a code of conduct which sets out 
the standards expected of councillors when acting in their official capacity. 
Councils must also have in place procedures to investigate and determine 
allegations against councillors. 

22. The government’s response to the recommendations of the Committee on 
Standards in Public Life is awaited and a further report will be brought forward 
when any changes are known.

Risks

23. If the councils fail to adopt and maintain a code of conduct and processes for the 
investigation of complaints, there is a risk of failure to comply with the statutory 
requirements, to the councils’ reputation and also to the integrity of their corporate 
governance and decision making processes. Both councils have these in place.

24. Using alternative methods of dispute resolution where there is no formal 
complaint, or where the parties agree, or where the Monitoring Officer suggests 
local resolution reduces the cost of dealing with formal complaints and often 
provides a more satisfactory outcome for all parties involved.

Other Implications

25. None.

Conclusion

26. This report is for the Joint Audit and Governance Committee to note and to be 
aware of the work of the monitoring officer in respect of councillor code of conduct 
matters and the recommendations of the Committee on Standards in Public Life.

Background Papers

None.

Page 14

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX
SOUTH
Case 
Reference

District or 
Parish

Nature of Complaint Decision Comments

S2017/1 District Complaint that councillor had 
made offensive comments

Local resolution Explanation given that councillor 
was reporting comments made 
by others, not expressing own 
views. Apology given for any 
misunderstanding or offence.

S2018/1 Parish Complaint of aggressive 
behaviour

No further action Matter not significant enough to 
justify public money/time on an 
investigation. Indications of 
errors of judgement on both 
sides. Differences over a 
political decision. No other 
parties involved.

S2018/1 Parish Complaint of aggressive, rude 
and humiliating behaviour

Local resolution Letter of apology provided. 
Matter not significant enough to 
justify public money/time on an 
investigation.

VALE
Case 
Reference

District or 
Parish

Nature of Complaint Decision Comments

V2017/1 Parish Complaint that parish councillor 
had put up posters advertising 
local events

No further action Posters not political. Advice 
given by planning enforcement. 
Matter not significant enough to 
justify public money/time on an 
investigation.

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 8



V2017/4
V2017/5
V2017/6

District Complaints that a ward councillor 
had failed to support objectors by 
not calling an application into 
planning committee. Failure to 
attend parish and district planning 
meetings and failure to attend a 
parish council meeting as a 
district councillor.

Local resolution Councillor not obliged to use 
discretionary call in powers. 
Apology given for failure to keep 
public contact details up to date 
and to be clear in 
communicating the decision not 
to call in the application.
Reminder given of availability of 
planning training for district 
councillors and parish councils. 
Reminder given to keep contact 
details up to date.

V2018/1 District Complaint by parish council about 
comments made at the district 
council’s Planning Committee

Local resolution Councillor issued a statement 
which was read out at the 
Planning Committee. Intentions 
of the councillor were clarified.

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 8



Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of Head of Corporate Services
Author: Kim Ashford
Telephone: 01235 422099
Textphone: 18001 01235 540303
E-mail: kim.ashford@southandvale.gov.uk
Wards affected: All
Cabinet member responsible: Jane Murphy
E-mail: jane.murphy@southandvale.gov.uk
Tel: 07970 932054
TO: Joint Audit and Governance Committee
DATE: 25 March 2019

Executive member responsible: Roger Cox
E-mail: roger.cox@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
Tel:  01367 243360

Review of complaints received during 2017/18

Recommendation

That the Committee notes the report.

Purpose of Report

1. The purpose of this report is to provide the committee with information about formal 
complaints received during 2017/18.  It includes our performance against targets for 
responding to formal complaints, and compares performance against previous years.

2. The official annual complaints reports from the Local Government and Social Care 
Ombudsman are included at Appendix 4 (Vale), and Appendix 5 (South).

3. Complaints statistics are reported regularly in Board Reports which are available on the 
councils’ website.

Strategic Objectives 

4. By analysing complaints, we can begin to identify any trends and where appropriate 
introduce service improvements central to our ambitions in providing a good customer 
service.  The way in which we respond to complaints is fundamental to creating positive 
relations with our customers. The councils are committed to providing a high level of 
service, and putting people at the centre of everything we do. 

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 17

Agenda Item 9



Background

The Complaints Procedure

5. The councils’ current complaint procedure is a two stage process:

Stage one - The head of service or service manager will respond (or arrange for a 
member of their team to respond on their behalf) within 20 calendar days of receipt of the 
complaint. All complaints are logged on the complaints database, and tracked corporately. 

Stage two – Where a customer is not happy with the response at stage one, they can 
elect to have it considered as a stage two complaint, and an independent head of service 
or the chief executive will normally respond within 20 calendar days of receipt of the 
request to escalate the complaint to stage two. 

6. Relevant ward member(s) are advised when we receive and respond to complaints at both 
stages.

7. Automatic reminders are generated to ensure that, wherever possible, we respond within 
the target deadlines. 

8. If, having followed our complaints procedure, the complainant remains dissatisfied, they 
have the right to ask the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGO) to 
investigate their complaint.  

9. During the period leading up to and during the restructure heads of service in particular 
were under significant resource pressures in responding to stage One complaints within 
the 20 calendar day target; to address this, a revised deadline has been offered to 
complainants, of 30 calendar days.  This is a temporary measure and is kept under 
ongoing review. 

Complaints by Council

10. For South, the number of stage one and stage two complaints remained similar to 
2016/17, and there was a reduction in the number of LGO complaints, as shown in the 
table below. 

11. For Vale, 
the number of stage one and LGO complaints received in 2017/18 have risen slightly since 
the previous year, while the number of stage two complaints has remained the same.

Page 18

Agenda Item 9



12. The following charts show the number of complaints received in 2017/18 for each 
service area and at each stage of the complaints procedure, for each council.  As 
in previous years the highest number of complaints received were for planning and 
finance; numbers have remained reasonably stable for each team. Please note 
that the groupings represent teams before the recent restructure; work is underway 
to restructure the database to reflect the new team structures. 

Page 19

Agenda Item 9



Performance against target response times 

13. The councils’ performance against the target response times at each stage are shown in 
the following charts.  Across both councils, an average of 66 per cent of complaints at 
stage one, and 50 per cent of complaints at stage two, were responded to within the target 
time of 20 calendar days.

Comparison of performance year on year  

14. The councils’ combined performance against target in responding to complaints 
over the past four years 2014/15 to 2017/18 is shown below.  

Page 20

Agenda Item 9



Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) investigations

15. During 2017/18 the LGO received six complaints against South compared with 11 in 
2016/17, and seven against Vale compared with six in 2016/17. 

16. The Ombudsman upheld three of the complaints made against South and five of those 
against Vale.  Copies of the Ombudsman’s decision on those complaints upheld are 
attached in appendix one and two.

17. Note that there is a discrepancy between the number of complaints recorded by the 
Ombudsman and those recorded by South and Vale as going to the Ombudsman.  This is 
generally because the LGO has received complaints which cannot be investigated until the 
complainant has been through the council’s internal complaints procedure, and the 
complainant chooses not to do so; or a complaint is outside the jurisdiction of the 
Ombudsman, including where there is an alternative right of appeal. 

Financial Implications

18.There are no financial implications arising directly from this report.

Legal Implications

19. There are no legal implications arising directly from this report.

Risks

20. There are no risks arising directly from this report.

Other implications

21. There are no human resources, sustainability, equality or diversity implications arising 
directly from this report.

Conclusion 

22. This report sets out information about complaints received during 2017/18.  The number of 
complaints received by the councils’ in 2017/18 have risen slightly on the previous year, 
with finance and planning continuing to receive the highest numbers.  We responded to 66 

Page 21

Agenda Item 9



per cent of complaints at stage one within 20 days, and 50 per cent at stage two.  The 
LGO received six complaints about South and seven against Vale, of which three and five 
were upheld respectively.

Background papers

None

Page 22

Agenda Item 9



Appendix One – Vale LGO decisions upheld – 1 April 
2017 to 31 March 2018

1. LGO decision – upheld: maladministration and injustice
Remedy – compensation paid: £1,700
Decision date – 5 October 2017
LGO main subject area – Housing and Development

Complaint
Mr X was unhappy that he was not allowed to go on the housing register and was unhappy 
with the advice he was given.

Mr X is complaining that the Council:

1. Operated a ‘sit tight’ policy so did not assist him when he was facing eviction from his 
property between 2011-2014.

2. Did not inform him that he would be excluded from the housing register if he had capital of 
£60,000 when he applied for the housing register in 2005 and did not inform him that housing 
associations which he could be nominated to may have lower financial thresholds for 
exclusion than the Council.

3. Would not provide a recording of his telephone call of 3 August 2016 despite the Council 
saying it records all telephone calls.

Ombudsman’s findings 
The Council is at fault as it did not take sufficient action when it became aware Mr X had 
savings in excess of £60,000 in August 2015. It did not suspend his housing register 
application to make enquiries into his position despite being aware of the level of his savings. 
The Council did not take any action when Mr X continued to bid and it encouraged him to 
continue to do so in its email of 5 April 2016. The Council’s record of its telephone call of 26 
August 2015 shows Mr X was aware that his savings were an issue that could affect his 
eligibility. So he could have made further enquiries of the Council before bidding. But the 
Council’s failure to act on the information it had about Mr X’s savings meant it gave mixed 
messages and his expectations that he was eligible for a property were raised. The Council 
should remedy this injustice.

Agreed action
The Council will:
• make a payment of £1500 to Mr X to cover the costs of his eviction as it is unlikely he would 
have incurred these costs if he had been aware he was not eligible for properties provided by 
the Council’s registered social housing provider partners.

• make a payment of £200 to acknowledge Mr X’s expectations about being eligible for a 
property were raised due the Council’s failure to review his housing application when it 
became aware he was not eligible for the housing register due to his savings. The Council 
should make these payments within one month of my final decision.

• amend its housing allocations policy within three months of my final decision to
make housing register applicants aware that its partner registered social housing providers 
may apply different financial eligibility criteria.

The Council has also undertaken to introduce staff training and new procedures to ensure 
potentially ineligible applicants are suspended from the housing register. This suspension 

Page 23

Agenda Item 9



should be while the Council makes enquiries into the applicant’s eligibility.

Final decision
There is no evidence of fault in the Council’s decision to require Mr X to provide a notice to 
quit from his employer requiring him to leave his tied accommodation before it would increase 
his priority on the housing register. The Council is at fault in failing to notify Mr X of its financial 
threshold for eligibility on the housing register and that of its housing association partners. As 
a result Mr X was unaware he was not eligible to bid for properties provided by the housing 
associations. The Council has agreed to remedy the injustice to Mr X as recommended so I 
have completed my investigation.

Page 24

Agenda Item 9



2. LGO decision – upheld: maladministration and injustice
Remedy – the council emailed the correct documentation to the complainant
Decision date – 31 May 2017
LGO main subject area – Finance

Complaint
Mr B complains the Council did not tell him a deduction was to be made from his salary for a 
housing benefit overpayment which he had challenged. He further complains the Council 
would not stop the deduction even though he offered to make payments direct and failed to 
provide the information he needed to appeal against the recovery of the overpayment. He 
complains about the conduct of staff dealing with his claim. He said that because of the 
deductions he could not meet his basic living expenses and has had to give up work.

Ombudsman’s findings 
Mr B complained that he was unaware the Council had requested deductions be made from 
his salary. The Council has not been able to provide a copy of the notice as it is manually 
produced and a copy was not saved to the electronic record. The Council has commented that 
most of the correspondence it sends to Mr B’s last known address is returned although the 
notice was not. It is therefore likely that Mr B did not receive the notice but this is not because 
of some fault by the Council. Mr B has not provided the Council with a postal address and in 
these circumstances it was fault for the Council to send the notices and other correspondence 
to his last known address. 

Mr B has said that he would receive correspondence to this address because he has a 
forwarding arrangement but the envelopes the Council use are marked do not redirect. The 
Council comments that this is an anti-fraud measure as recommended by the Department of 
Work and Pensions. This is not fault. 

Mr B comments that he understood that the matter was being investigated and was therefore 
on hold. He was not told that recovery action would be proceeding. In January 2016 Mr B 
provided more information which the Council acted on and issued a revised entitlement letter. 
This was telling Mr B that he owed over £14,000 and also told him how he could challenge the 
decision. I consider this was making clear that the Council considered him liable. I have seen 
no evidence to show that Mr B took any action at this point and I consider it would be 
reasonable for him to assume that the Council was going to take action to recover the money 
owed. 

I have seen email correspondence between Mr B and the agents acting for the Council. Mr B 
offered to pay £50 and asked the Council to stop the deductions from his salary. The Council 
said that it would stop the deductions if Mr B agreed to pay £100 a month and provided his 
current address. Mr B comments that the Council expected him to pay the £100 on top of the 
deduction that had already been made and he was not able to provide an address as he was 
living in a number of temporary places. The Council did initially ask for an immediate payment 
of £100 but in response to Mr B’s reply the Council agreed to accept a payment once the 
deductions from his salary were stopped. The Council did say that he must provide an 
address where he was living as it needed to send some correspondence in writing. This was 
not fault. I understand Mr B’s living arrangements were not permanent but he still needed to 
provide the Council with a postal address. In not doing so he ran the risk of not receiving 
important communications. 

In responding to Mr B’s complaint the Council said that the only way it could consider a 
payment arrangement would be if Mr B completed a means enquiry form. This would mean it 
could assess whether the deductions were causing him hardship. The Council posted a form 
to his last known address.  Mr B asked for it to be emailed but the Council did not do so. I 
consider the Council should have emailed the form to Mr B. But Mr B did not chase the 

Page 25

Agenda Item 9



Council for a form nor did he provide evidence of his income and expenditure in some other 
way. 

Mr B says the Council did not tell him how he could appeal against the overpayments. The 
standard notifications of the overpayment the Council sent to Mr B in July 2015 and in March 
2016 after the reassessment contained details of how to appeal. 

Mr B complained in general terms about the staff he had dealt with about this matter. I have 
seen nothing to suggest any fault. 

Agreed action
The Council has emailed a means enquiry form to Mr B. 

Final decision
There was no fault by the Council in using a direct earnings attachment from Mr B’s salary to 
recover overpaid housing benefit. There was fault in the failure to email a means enquiry form. 
The Council will now email the form to Mr B and that is a satisfactory resolution of the 
complaint.

Page 26

Agenda Item 9



3. LGO decision – upheld: maladministration and injustice
Remedy – compensation paid: £1,000
Decision date – 24 August 2017
LGO main subject area – Finance

Complaint
Mr B complains that the Vale of White Horse Council failed to treat his letter of 17 July
2013 as an appeal against the Council’s decision to refuse his wife’s (Ms C’s) 
claim for housing benefit. The Council referred the appeal to the Tribunal Service in June 
2016. Mr B won his appeal in April 2017. The delay in receiving the correct benefit has 
caused Mr B financial hardship.

Ombudsman’s findings 
The Council failed to refer Mr B’s case to the tribunal following its commitment to do so in 
August 2013. This was fault. If it had referred it then, it is likely the case would not have been 
heard until approximately 10 months later (this is an estimate based on the later timescales for 
the appeal hearing). But if the appeal had been heard before 30 July 2014 it would have failed 
as Ms C had no award of income support at this point. So there is limited injustice arising out 
of the initial delay.

Mr B did not chase up the appeal between August 2013 and May 2015. He says it was 
reasonable to rely on the Council to follow through on its original commitment. He says he 
chased the Council after ten months but I do not have evidence of this.  He did have contact 
with the Council in 2014 regarding his own claim and said Ms C was not living with him. He 
also did not inform the Council in July 2014 that Ms C had been awarded income support. So I 
have concluded there was some contribution by Mr B in not chasing up the Council sooner. 

The Council also failed to act on information provided by Mr B in May 2015 and the DWP in 
November 2015, that Ms C had been in receipt of income support from 30 July 2014 with 
effect from August 2013 and should no longer be treated as a person from abroad. The 
Council could have picked up this point sooner as Mr B provided the information in May 2015. 
It also could have revised its decision on her claim without waiting for the tribunal hearing 
because of the change in her status due to the income support award. The failure to do so 
was fault.

If the correct benefit had been paid soon after May 2015, it would have reduced Mr B’s rent 
arrears considerably and he could have used the money he spent clearing the arrears in early 
2016 on his other financial commitments. It may also have prevented some of the stressful 
recovery action such as bailiff visits. But I cannot say the failure to pay the benefit sooner 
would have prevented the rest of Mr B’s debts in their entirety. Mr B and Ms C were not 
entitled to any benefit for the period from May until August 2013 which would have caused 
approximately £2000 of rent arrears to accumulate. There also appear to have been other 
delays in 2014 in paying housing benefit which complicate the situation. 

Agreed action
The Council took two years to pay the correct benefit to Mr B and Ms C. I welcome the offer of 
£300 in recognition of the distress caused to them by the delay. But I consider a higher 
payment is appropriate: Mr B and Ms C were on a low income as Ms C was entitled to income 
support. So I consider the delay of two years in paying £2800 of housing benefit had a 
significant effect and would have exacerbated their already precarious financial situation. 

Final decision
I consider a payment of £1000 more accurately reflects the injustice caused to them over a 
prolonged period and I asked the Council to increase its payment to this amount. I am pleased 
to say it has agreed to do so.

Page 27

Agenda Item 9



4. LGO decision – upheld: maladministration, no injustice
Remedy – compensation paid: £100
Decision date – 27 July 2017
LGO main subject area – Planning

Complaint
Mr X and his partner, Ms Y, bought a house on a new housing development. They stated the 
developer breached planning conditions and did not build the development in accordance with 
the approved plans. They complained that the Council failed to take action to rectify the 
situation.

Ombudsman’s findings 
Councils have a duty to record and investigate any report of a breach of planning control. In 
considering enforcement complaints, councils must have regard to the government’s policy on 
enforcement in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). 

The NPPF acknowledges that effective enforcement is important to maintain public confidence 
in the planning system. However, councils are not obliged to take enforcement solely to 
regularise a breach of planning control or to ensure developments are carried out strictly as 
the plans show. Rather, councils have discretion and they have to decide if it is appropriate to 
take action, and what action to take based on individual cases. The NPPF says council should 
act proportionately and they should take into account the impact of any breach of planning 
when reaching their decision about what action to take. 

Driveway and Road Surfacing
I understand that Mr X and Ms Y felt the Council should formally enforce the road and 
driveway surface materials the developer stated he would use for the development in 2014.  
However, as I say above the law does not require councils to rigidly enforce approved plans in 
this way. In a situation like this, the council has to consider if the materials being proposed 
(tarmac) would be acceptable in planning terms. It will usually consider how it would have 
viewed the use tarmac roads and driveways if the developer had originally applied for them. 

If councils consider the new materials proposed are acceptable and would not cause harm in 
planning terms, they often have no grounds to refuse permission to vary materials used. For 
this reason I consider there was no fault in the Council’s initial view that it may not be 
expedient to take formal action. Since that time the developer has submitted a planning 
application, this is yet to be decided. However, I note Mr X and Ms Y have been able to 
comment on the application. It is for the Council to determine this application in accordance 
with the NPPF and its local planning policies. In this case the Council’s consideration includes 
whether permeable or impermeable surfaces should be accepted.

In the event that the Council decides the variance in materials used is acceptable in planning 
terms, I can understand why Mr X and Ms Y may still consider that the developer’s decision to 
change the materials is frustrating and not acceptable to them. They noted the developer 
made this change after they purchased their property and they consider this a breach of 
contract. 

I should explain that the planning system exists to determine whether the development 
proposed is acceptable in planning terms only. It does not exist to protect an individual’s legal 
rights. So, quite apart from the Council’s planning decision on the materials that are 
acceptable, if Mr X and Ms Y considered the developer acted unreasonably by varying the 
contract they had, they may wish to take legal advice about how they may address any 
contractual issues with the developer. 

Although the Council could have explained the position more fully, I do not consider its 
decisions about the changes to materials represent fault.

Page 28

Agenda Item 9



Car Ports
I have reviewed the original approved plans. These appear to show car ports for the two plots 
that Mr X and Ms Y questioned. This part of the plan could have been clearer (garages on 
other plots seem to have been outlined more boldly) but, as the plans do show car ports for 
the plots in question the Council’s decision that this was not a breach of planning control was 
appropriate. 

I note that Officer A’s original response incorrectly referred to a non-material planning 
application (for Mr X and Ms Y’s double garage) when responding.  This error was unfortunate 
and caused some confusion.

Street Lighting
There are two issues here. Firstly, Mr X and Ms Y were unhappy the developer proposed 
relocating a lamp post nearer to their home. They noted the proposed location was their land 
and they would not allow this. Officer A’s initial response stated the Council would be unlikely 
to object to the relocation of the lamp post. However, he did not make it clear whether the 
Council considered this a breach of planning control. 

The Council’s first response to the formal complaint clarified this. It acknowledged there was a 
technical breach because the proposed position of the lamp post had changed from that 
shown on the approved plans. However, the developer agreed they would move the lamppost 
to land opposite Mr X and Ms Y’s property to resolve this issue.  

The planning system does not override the rights of those who own land. So, even if the 
Council had agreed the relocation would not be harmful to their amenity, and would be 
acceptable in planning terms, Mr X and Ms Y could still have refused the developer 
permission to land they own for the lamp post if they wished to.

In terms of the overall lack of lighting, councils generally apply ‘pre-occupation’ conditions for 
a reason. In this case, the planning permission for the development required the street lighting 
for the estate to be operational before the development was occupied for residents’ living 
conditions and for highway safety reasons. The street lights were not complete and were not 
working when residents moved in. This is a clear breach of the pre-occupation condition.   

Initially the council’s response to this issue was flawed. The Council incorrectly accepted the 
developer’s statement that all but one of the street lights were in place. It acknowledged  this 
when responding to the complaint. However, when it considered this further, it took into 
account the correct situation and maintained its view that it would be disproportionate to take 
formal enforcement action. Councils are required to consider whether it is proportionate to 
take formal action. When it considered the impact and noted the developer was working to 
remedy the problem, it decided formal action was not warranted. Although I appreciate Mr X 
and Ms Y may disagree, this is a decision the Council is entitled to take. I do not have grounds 
to question it.  

Page 29

Agenda Item 9



Civil / Contractual issues
The Council should reach decisions on the planning matters raised by Mr X and Ms Y in 
accordance with planning legislation. In terms of new housing estates, the Council will 
consider whether any deviations from the approved plans are acceptable in planning terms, 
but this does not mean the Council could ensure the properties that people have purchased 
are finished to the specification as sold, or as they expect. Mr X and Ms Y may wish to take up 
concerns about any changes to the specification directly with the developer. 

Mrs Y’s condition
Mr X had explained Ms Y had Asperger’s Syndrome. He noted that she saw things as ‘black 
or white’. This meant changes from the approved plans caused her greater anxiety and 
concern and she had the expectation that the development should be carried out strictly in 
accordance with the approved plans. 

The Council’s responses to the complaint were inaccurate at times. This caused some 
confusion and contributed to the escalation of the complaint. As the Council was on notice that 
Ms Y had Aspergers Syndrome, I would also have expected the Council’s decisions to have 
been better explained. I consider the flaws in the Council’s responses affected her more than 
it would have affected someone without her condition. As a result I recommended the Council 
pays Ms Y £100 to reflect the time and trouble she spent pursuing the complaint. It agreed to 
do so.

I am satisfied the Council’s planning decisions themselves were reached properly. The 
Council is still considering what action to take in respect of the development as a planning 
application covering issues at the site is still being considered.

Agreed action
The Council should pay Ms Y £100 to reflect the failings in the way it responded to the 
complaint and the time and trouble she spent pursuing the matter.

Final decision
There was fault causing injustice. I intend to complete my investigation on the basis the 
Council has agreed to the recommended remedy.

Page 30

Agenda Item 9



5. LGO decision – upheld: maladministration and injustice
Remedy – compensation paid: £150 and a letter of apology
Decision date – 30 August 2017
LGO main subject area – Planning

Complaint
Mrs X complains that the Council failed to consider her objections and impact on her amenity 
when granting planning permission for her neighbour’s development. Mrs X also complains 
that the Council failed to refer the application to the planning committee to decide.

Ombudsman’s findings 
There is no evidence of fault in the Council’s decision to notify fewer residents for the second 
application than it did for the first. The Council is only required to notify those residents 
adjoining the development site or placing a site notice. The Council notified the adjoining 
residents including Mrs X. It was not required to notify any other residents. 

There is no evidence of fault in how officer B assessed the resubmitted application. Officer B 
carried out a site visit so she was in a good position to assess the impact on Mrs X’s property. 
The photographs taken by officer B show she was aware of the surrounding properties 
including Mrs X’s. In commenting on my draft decision Mrs X has raised that officer B did not 
visit her property when assessing the application but officer A did.  There is no obligation for 
the Council to visit neighbouring properties when assessing planning applications. So officer B 
was not at fault for not visiting Mrs X’s property.  Officer B’s photographs and her report show 
she was aware of the proximity of Mrs X’s property.

Officer B’s report noted the objections received including Mrs X’s. Her report shows she 
considered the impact on Mrs X’s property including on her light and explained why she 
considered the impact to be acceptable. In response to Mrs X’s complaint and my enquiries 
the Council has further explained why it considers the impact on Mrs X’s property to be 
acceptable. I understand Mrs X disagrees with the Council’s assessment. But as there is no 
fault in how officer B assessed the application I do not have grounds to question her 
professional judgement. 

In commenting on my draft decision Mrs X has said the eaves height of the new development 
will not remain the same and the roof does not slope away on the front extension. The 
approved plans show the eaves height adjacent to Mrs X’s property will remain the same and 
the roof facing Mrs X’s property slopes away from her property.  So there is no evidence of 
fault in officer B’s assessment. 

Mrs X has also said officer B did not refer to the front extension which she considers will 
overshadow her property. Officer B’s report shows she assessed the impact of the 
development as a whole on Mrs X’s property. She acknowledged the development may cause 
some overshadowing but this was not significant enough to warrant refusal of the application.  
So there is no evidence of fault. 

Mrs X also considers the Council has underestimated the difference in land levels between the 
development site and her property. She considers it to be 0.5m. I do not know if Mrs X’s figure 
or that of the Council is correct. But I will not pursue the matter any further. This is because, 
on balance, a difference of land levels of 0.5m would not  have changed the Council’s decision 
that the development was acceptable.  Officer B visited the site so she would have been 
aware of the difference in land levels when assessing the application and the impact on Mrs 
X’s property. 

The Council has acknowledged that officers did not correctly advise the local councillor that he 
needed to make a separate request to call in the planning application in accordance with its 
constitution. So the local councillor did not follow the proper process for calling in the 
application.  This is fault. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 9



As a result the planning application was not considered by the planning committee as it should 
have been.  Mrs X was also denied the opportunity to present her objections to the planning 
committee. 

The question for me is whether the outcome for Mrs X would have been any different had the 
planning committee considered the planning application. On balance I do not consider the 
planning committee would have refused the application. Mrs X would have been able to 
present her objections. But officers would have recommended approval for the application as 
they considered the development to be acceptable. Councillors have to take account of 
officers’ assessment of the application and their recommendation. While they are not 
compelled to follow officers recommendation they frequently do and councillors have to give 
planning reasons for refusing an application.  So it is likely that the planning committee would 
have approved the application.

But Mrs X had a reasonable expectation that the application would be considered by the 
planning committee and she lost the opportunity to present her objections to the planning 
committee. The Council should remedy this injustice. 

Agreed action
That the Council sends a written apology and makes a payment of £150 to Mrs X to 
acknowledge that she had a reasonable expectation that the application would be considered 
by the planning committee and she lost the opportunity to present her objections to committee 
as a result of fault by the Council. 

Final decision
The Council is at fault as Mrs X’s neighbour’s planning application should have been 
determined by the planning committee rather than officers. As a result Mrs X lost the 
opportunity to present her objections to the planning committee. The Council has agreed to 
remedy this injustice as recommended so I have completed my investigation. 

Page 32

Agenda Item 9



Appendix Two - South LGO decisions upheld – 1 
April 2017 to 31 March 2017

1. LGO decision – upheld: maladministration, no injustice
Decision date – 5 July 2017
LGO main subject area – Finance

Complaint
The complainant, who I shall call Mr X, says the Council has unfairly and without any form of 
warning or redress, applied retrospectively for 18 months of business rates. He says this has 
caused him distress, financial hardship and worry and created uncertainty for the long term 
prospect for his small rural business. He questions why the Council did not identify his 
business sooner.

Ombudsman’s findings 
Mr X has operated his business from the same premises for a number of years, but had not 
been charged business rates.  In March 2016 one of the Council’s Rates Inspectors visited the 
site and found the unit Mr X occupied, which was not on the rating list. They told the VOA.

In September a VOA officer visited the site. They found Mr X occupied two units on the site. 
The VOA brought both properties into the rating list from 1 April 2015. Although Mr X had 
operated from the premises prior to 1 April 2015, this was the furthest the law allowed the 
rating to be backdated. The VOA officer told Mr X they were adding his properties to the list, 
but he assumed this would not take effect until the following financial year. It was open to Mr X 
to appeal the VOA’s decision on the rateable value of the properties and the date it brought 
the properties into rating. The VOA also told the Council the properties were in the rating list. 
In October 2016 the Council sent Mr X business rates bills for each unit, backdated to 1 April 
2015.

Mr X complained to the Council about the backdated bills. He considered they were issued 
unreasonably late and without warning. Mr X also questioned why the Council had not given 
him the rates reduction the Government allows for small business.  Based on this new 
information the Council granted him the small business rate relief for one of the units for the 
financial year 2015/2016. It later explained to him exactly how the Government regulations 
governing the relief worked and how it had calculated the award.

As Mr X was not eligible for small business rate relief for both units, or for the year 2016/ 2017 
he asked if he could have rural rate relief or discretionary rate relief. The Council refused both 
applications. Under the relevant Government regulations the settlement Mr X’s business was 
in did not count as a rural community. Nor was Mr X’s vehicle repair business eligible for the 
Council’s discretionary rate relief scheme.

As Mr X did not pay the first instalments due, in November 2016 the Council sent a reminder 
notice. Having applied the small business rate relief it then sent a revised bill in December 
2016, together with a payment plan. Mr X did not make the first payment under this plan so 
the Council issued a reminder in January 2017. It then issued a Magistrates court summons in 
March 2017.

Mr X was unhappy with the Council’s actions and has asked the Ombudsman to investigate 
his complaint.  Mr X believes the Council’s Rates Inspector should have been aware of his 
business and visited much sooner. His business premises were originally farm buildings, but 
the owner applied for a change of use several years ago. Had the Council visited sooner, Mr X 
would not be faced with backdated bills which have created financial difficulties for his 
business. 

Page 33

Agenda Item 9



Mr X is also unhappy with the way the Council has tried to collect the rates. He does not 
consider he was allowed an adequate opportunity to pay the rates and feels the Council has 
been heavy handed.

In response to my enquiries the Council states that in recent years it implemented information 
sharing systems to assist its property inspectors. It states there is nothing associated with Mr 
X in its case history that would have prompted an inspection of the farm buildings.  The 
inspector noticed Mr X’s units during a routine inspection.

The Council states Mr X would have known about business rates. Although he was not legally 
obliged to notify the Council he was occupying the units, it cannot be a surprise that the 
Council has now issued demands for business rates. The Council does not consider Mr X has 
suffered any injustice as a result of the late service of the rates bills. Mr X does not have to 
pay a higher amount than he would have had the demands been issued sooner. However the 
Council acknowledges Mr X’s business is relatively small. Rather than add any financial strain 
to the business by demanding payment in full, the Council has agreed a lengthy repayment 
plan.

The Council considers it has reached a satisfactory outcome for the repayment of the rates 
that are legally due.

Both the Council and Mr X have responded to the draft decision. Mr X has reiterated his 
concern about the way the Council has tried to collect the rates. He considers the Council was 
wrong to send a reminder notice threatening legal action just 19 days after issuing the initial 
bill. Mr X also considers the Council’s system for awarding rural rate relief and discretionary 
rate relief to be unnecessarily complicated.

The Council’s response accepts the two entries for Mr X’s properties could have been added 
to the Valuation list sooner. This would have meant he received bills sooner. It confirms that 
although the planning department did provide reports to the non domestic rates department it 
can find nothing relating to Mr X’s address. The Council also noted Mr X has appealed the 
VOA’s decision to list the properties separately. The VOA has now merged his two premises 
into one list entry, backdated to 1 April 2015. The Council has awarded small business rate 
relief on the merged account back to 1 April 2015. 

Although the Council has information sharing procedures between its departments, these do 
not appear to have identified when Mr X first occupied his premises. A retrospective planning 
application for a change of use of some of the agricultural buildings in 2009 refers to Mr X as 
the occupier of one of the units. Had the non domestic rates department been aware of this 
planning application it is likely a property inspector would have visited the site much sooner.  
The VOA could then have added Mr X’s business unit to the rating list.

I consider the failure to identify Mr X’s premises sooner amounts to fault, but I am not 
persuaded this has caused Mr X a significant injustice. 

I appreciate Mr X did not expect the units to be valued separately or to be billed 
retrospectively for two years business rates and that this will have a financial impact on his 
business. But the Council billed him as soon as it could after the VOA told it the properties 
were in the rating list and has allowed him to pay the rates in instalments. The Council has 
also awarded Mr X small business rate relief where applicable.

Agreed action
Although Mr X was not obliged to notify the Council of the start of his business, he would have 
known of the rates liability and could have notified the Council or budgeted accordingly. The 
Council has a duty to collect the rates due and has sent Mr X the appropriate demands, 
reminders and notices in order to do so. The Council must allow the rate payer at least 14 
days from the issue of the bill in which to pay. It can then send a reminder notice.

Final Decision
Page 34

Agenda Item 9



The Council’s delay in identifying Mr X’s business units so that they could be included 
on the business rating list amounts to fault but has not caused Mr X a significant 
injustice

Page 35

Agenda Item 9



.

2. LGO decision – upheld – maladministration and injustice
Remedy – payment of £150 and an apology to the complainant within 6 weeks
Decision date – 22 December 2017
LGO main subject area – Planning

Complaint
Mr X complains that:
• The Council decided not to take enforcement action following unauthorised work to a tree 

protected by a Tree Preservation Order (TPO); and

• Details of a new TPO on the Council’s website and in the schedule of the TPO itself 
contained inaccuracies, which could make it unenforceable.
 

Ombudsman’s findings 
I accept the Tree Officer’s explanation that inaccurate descriptions on the website would not 
hinder enforcement and that the TPO had remained enforceable, despite the error in the 
schedule. I also accept the Council was entitled to reach the decision it has on enforcement 
regarding the lopped tree. This is because, in making its decision, it considered:

• the allegation

• its enforcement powers under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

• relevant government guidance

• evaluated the harm caused by a potential breach

This is the process we expect and so there was no fault in the way the enforcement decision 
was made. 

There were faults on the Council’s website and in the schedule of the TPO. Mr X raised at 
least two of these faults with the Council before bringing his complaint to the Ombudsman. 
The Council has accepted it was at fault and the steps it has taken to improve its practice and 
procedure are satisfactory. 

Agreed action
To remedy this complaint, the Council has agreed to:
• apologise to Mr X;

• pay £150 for his time and trouble in bringing his complaint to the Ombudsman’s attention; 
and

• inform the Ombudsman of its progress in carrying out the remedy within 6 weeks from the 
date of our final decision. 

Final Decision
There was fault which the Council has agreed to remedy and so I have completed my 
investigation.

Page 36

Agenda Item 9



3. LGO decision – upheld: maladministration and injustice
Decision date – 20 February 2018
Remedy – compensation of £100 paid to the complainant and surcharge waived
LGO main subject area – Planning

Complaint
Mr and Mrs B complain that the Council:
• did not notify them that Mr B was liable to pay a Community Infrastructure Levy 

(CIL) when they obtained planning permission to demolish and rebuild their home
• wrote to their architect and said there was no CIL liability, then proposed to charge them, 

but reduced the amount by half when they complained

• levied late payment surcharges despite their complaints to the Council

They are unhappy with the way the Council dealt with the CIL and their complaint about
this, and consider that the Council should waive the charge.

Ombudsman’s findings 

Failure to inform Mr B directly
Mr B has complained that the Council did not properly inform him about the charge because it 
did not contact him at the correct address. I note that Mr B had signed Form 1 in March 2016 
accepting liability for the CIL. However, I also understand he may not recall this as he had 
serious health problems at the time.

The Regulations state that:

“The collecting authority must issue a liability notice as soon as practicable after the day on 
which a planning permission first permits development.”

In this case, the Council issued the Liability Notice very promptly on the date that planning 
permission was granted, so there was no fault here.

However, the Regulations also state that 

“The collecting authority must serve the liability notice on—

(a) the relevant person;

(b) if a person has assumed liability to pay CIL in respect of the chargeable 
development, that person…”

In this case, Mr B had assumed liability to pay CIL. Although the Council sent Mr B’s architect 
a copy of the Notice and sent the Notice to the site address, the Council’s duty was to serve 
notice on Mr B. To serve notice on Mr B, the Council should have written to him at the 
correspondence address he provided in Form 1. Not doing so was fault and contributed to the 
subsequent problems.

Misleading letter to the architects
Mr B says the letter to his architect was confusing.

The Council has accepted that the wording was open to interpretation and has amended the 
wording in letters to third parties to avoid such confusion in future. 

I understand the architect may not have received a letter of this nature before, given that the 
Council had only recently introduced CIL. I appreciate that this letter also contributed to the 
subsequent confusion. However, the Council has taken appropriate steps to ensure that its 
correspondence is clearer.

Page 37

Agenda Item 9



CIL – Initial calculation
Mr B has criticised the Council for proposing to charge him £12,900 before reducing the 
proposed charge to £5,700. He considers that this shows a lack of care on by the Council.

I see no fault here. The Council calculated the charge based on the measurements Mr B’s 
architect provided. 

CIL – Final liability
I have considered whether Mr B could have appealed to the VOA over the sum due and, if so, 
whether this is within the Ombudsman’s jurisdiction. However, as development had 
commenced, Mr B had no appeal right over the sum due when the Liability Notice was issued, 
so the Ombudsman can consider this. In this case, the development involves the building of a 
new dwelling, but none of the exemptions apply, so CIL is payable. The Council has also 
calculated the charge based on the revised figures Mr B has provided. I see no fault here, and 
the charge remains payable.

Agreed action
The Council has agreed to waive the £341.17 surcharge and pay Mr B £100 for his time and 
trouble.

Final Decision
I have closed my investigation into the complaint because the agreed remedy is a suitable 
response to the injustice Mr B has experienced.

 

Page 38

Agenda Item 9



South Oxfordshire and 
Vale of White Horse 
District Councils
Audit planning report 

Year ended 31 March 2019

March 2019

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 10



2

07 March 2019

Dear Joint Audit & Governance Committee Members

Audit planning report

We are pleased to attach our Audit Plan which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as auditor. Its purpose is to provide the 
Joint Audit & Governance Committee with a basis to review our proposed audit approach and scope for the 2018/19 audits in accordance with 
the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, the Statement of 
Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and other professional requirements. It is also to 
ensure that our audit is aligned with the Committee’s service expectations.

This plan summarises our initial assessment of the key risks driving the development of an effective audit for the Councils, and outlines our 
planned audit strategy in response to those risks.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Joint Audit & Governance Committee and management, and is not intended to be 
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 13 March 2019 as well as understand whether there are other matters which you 
consider may influence our audit.

Yours faithfully 

Kevin Suter

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Enc.

Joint Audit & Governance Committee
South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
135 Eastern Avenue
Milton Park
Milton, OX14 4SB

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 10



3

Contents

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-
quality/statement-of-responsibilities/)).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different 
responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas. 
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National
Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Joint Audit & Governance Committee and management of the Councils in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so that we 
might state to the Joint Audit & Governance Committee and management of the Councils those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Joint Audit & Governance Committee and management of the Councils for this report or for the opinions we have 
formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

Overview of our 
2018/2019 audit 
strategy

01 Audit risks02 Audit 
materiality

04 Scope of our 
audit

05

Appendices09Audit team06 Audit 
timeline07 Independence08

Value for 
Money Risks

03

V
F
M

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 10

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities/


4

Overview of our 2018/19
audit strategy

01 01

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 10



5

Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy

Audit risks and areas of focus

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Joint Audit & 
Governance Committee with an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in the current year.  

Risk / area of focus Risk identified Change from PY Details

Inappropriate capitalisation of 
revenue expenditure

Fraud risk
New risk identified 
this year.

Under ISA240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to 
improper recognition of revenue. In the public sector, this requirement is 
modified by Practice Note 10, issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which 
states that auditors should also consider the risk that material misstatements 
may occur by the manipulation of expenditure recognition.  
Our judgement is the significant risk at the Councils relates to the improper 
capitalisation of revenue expenditure.

Misstatements due to fraud or error Fraud risk
No change in risk or 

focus

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud 
because of its ability to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and 
prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that would 
otherwise appear to be operating effectively.  In addition to our overall response, 
we consider where these risks may manifest themselves and identify separate 
fraud risks as necessary below.

Pension Liability Valuation Inherent risk
No change in risk or 
focus.

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Councils 
to make extensive disclosures within their financial statements regarding their 
membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by 
Oxfordshire County Council.
The Councils’ pension fund asset is a material estimated balance and the Code 
requires that this asset be disclosed on the Council’s balance sheet. The 
information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the Council by the 
actuary to the County Council.
Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement and 
therefore management engages an actuary to undertake the calculations on their 
behalf. ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on 
the use of management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value 
estimates.

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 10



6

Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy

Audit risks and areas of focus (continued)

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Joint Audit & 
Governance Committee with an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in the current year.  

Risk / area of focus Risk identified Change from PY Details

Valuation of Land and Buildings Inherent risk No change in risk or 
focus.

The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) represents a significant 
balance in the Councils’ accounts and are subject to valuation changes, 
impairment reviews and depreciation charges. Management is required to make 
material judgements and apply estimation techniques to calculate the year-end 
balances recorded in the balance sheet.

New Accounting Standards Inherent risk
New risk identified 
this year.

IFRS 9 (Financial Instruments) and IFRS 15 (Revenue from contracts) both apply
from 1 April 2018. We will assess the impact of these new standards to 
determine whether they have been appropriately implemented by the Councils.

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 10



7

Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy

Materiality – Vale of White Horse District Council

Planning
materiality

£1.624m
Performance 

materiality

£1.218m
Audit

differences

£0.081m

Materiality has been set at £1.624m, which represents 2% of the prior years gross expenditure on provision of services.

Performance materiality has been set at £1.218m, which represents 75% of materiality.

We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the primary statements (comprehensive income 
and expenditure statement, balance sheet, movement in reserves statement, cash flow statement, and 
collection fund) greater than £81,000.  Other misstatements identified will be communicated to the 
extent that they merit the attention of the Joint Audit & Governance Committee.
.

Materiality – South Oxfordshire District Council

Planning
materiality

£1.689m
Performance 

materiality

£1.267m
Audit

differences

£0.084m

Materiality has been set at £1.689m, which represents 2% of the prior years gross expenditure on provision of services. 

Performance materiality has been set at £1.267m, which represents 75% of materiality.

We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the primary statements (comprehensive income 
and expenditure statement, balance sheet, movement in reserves statement, cash flow statement, and  
collection fund) greater than £84,000.  Other misstatements identified will be communicated to the 
extent that they merit the attention of the Joint Audit & Governance Committee.

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 10



8

Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy 

Audit scope

This Audit Plan covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with:

 Our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of the Councils give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 March 2019 and of the income and 
expenditure for the year then ended; and

 Our conclusion on the Councils’ arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO), to the extent and in the form required by them, on the Councils’ Whole of Government Accounts 
return.

Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in accordance with applicable laws and auditing standards.

When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs:

 Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements;
 Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards;
 The quality of systems and processes;
 Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and,
 Management’s views on all of the above.

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter and our feedback is more likely to be relevant to the Councils. 

Audit team changes

Key changes to our team.

Kevin Suter, Associate Partner 

 Kevin replaces Andrew Brittain
 Kevin is an Associate Partner within the UK&I Assurance  practice, with over 20 years experience of UK Local Government audits. 
 He is a member of CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Accountancy) and will be the key contact for the Joint Audit & Governance 

Committee and chief officers.  

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 10



9

Audit risks02 01

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 10



10

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks 

What will we do?

We will undertake our standard procedures to address fraud risk, which 
include:

 Inquiring of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in 
place to address those risks.

 Understanding the oversight given by those charged with governance of 
management’s processes over fraud.

 Considering the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to 
address the risk of fraud.

 Performing mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified 
fraud risks, including:

 testing of journal entries and other adjustments in the 
preparation of the financial statements.

 Evaluating accounting estmates for any evidence of 
management bias

 Evaluating the business rationale for significant unusual 
transactions

We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.

What is the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not free 
of material misstatements whether caused by 
fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK and Ireland) 240, 
management is in a unique position to 
perpetrate fraud because of its ability to 
manipulate accounting records directly or 
indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial 
statements by overriding controls that 
otherwise appear to be operating effectively. 

We identify and respond to this fraud risk on 
every audit engagement.

Misstatements due to fraud or 
error *

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 10



11

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks 

What is the risk?

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that 
revenue may be misstated due to improper 
revenue recognition. In the public sector, this 
requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 
issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which 
states that auditors should also consider the risk 
that material misstatements may occur by the 
manipulation of expenditure recognition. 

We have identified an opportunity and incentive to 
capitalise expenditure under the accounting 
framework, to remove it from the general fund. In 
arriving at this conclusion we have considered the 
high value of the Councils’ 2018/19 capital 
programme relative to its planned revenue 
spending.

This could then result in funding of that 
expenditure, that should properly be defined as 
revenue, through inappropriate sources such as 
capital receipts, capital grants, or borrowing.

What will we do?

We will:

► Test PPE additions to ensure that the expenditure 
incurred and capitalised is clearly capital in nature.

► Test expenditure classified as REFCUS to ensure it 
meets the classification requirements.

► Seek to identify and understand the basis for any 
significant journals transferring expenditure from 
revenue to capital codes on the general ledger.

We will utilise our data analytics capabilities to assist with 
our work, including journal entry testing.

Financial statement impact

We have assessed that the risk of misreporting 
revenue outturn in the financial statements is most 
likely to be achieved through:

► Revenue expenditure being inappropriately 
recognised as capital expenditure at the point it is 
posted to the general ledger.
► Expenditure being inappropriately transferred 
by journal from revenue to capital codes on the 
general ledger at the end of the year.

If this were to happen it would have the impact of 
understating revenue expenditure and overstating 
PPE additions and/or REFCUS in the financial 
statements.

We have set out the significant risks identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach. The risks identified below may
change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.

Inappropriate capitalisation of revenue 
expenditure*

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 10



12

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Pension Liability Valuation

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 
require the Council to make extensive disclosures within its 
financial statements regarding its membership of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme administered by the Council.
The Councils’ pension fund deficits are a material estimated 
balance and the Code requires that this liability be disclosed on 
the Council’s balance sheet. 
The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to 
the Council by the actuary to the County Council.

Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and 
judgement and therefore management engages an actuary to 
undertake the calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK and Ireland) 
500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on the use of 
management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value 
estimates.

We will:

• Liaise with the auditors of Oxfordshire Pension Fund,  to obtain assurances over the 
information supplied to the actuary in relation to the Councils.

• Assess the work of the pension fund actuary (Barnett Waddingham) including the assumptions 
they have used by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries commissioned by the
National Audit Office for all Local Government sector auditors, and considering any relevant 
reviews by the EY actuarial team; and 

• Review and test the accounting entries and disclosures made within the Councils’ financial 
statements in relation to IAS19.

We will consider outturn information available at the time we undertake our work after production 
of the Council’s draft financial statements, for example the year-end actual valuation of pension 
fund assets. We will use this to inform our assessment of the accuracy of estimated information 
included in the financial statements and whether any adjustments are required.

Valuation of Land and Buildings

The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and 
Investment Properties (IP) represent significant balances in the 
Council’s accounts and are subject to valuation changes, 
impairment reviews and depreciation charges. Management is 
required to make material judgemental inputs and apply 
estimation techniques to calculate the year-end balances 
recorded in the balance sheet.

We will:

• Consider the work performed by the Council’s valuers, including the adequacy of the scope of 
the work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their work;

• Sample test key asset information used by the valuers in performing its valuation (e.g. floor 
plans to support valuations based on price per square metre) and challenge the key 
assumptions used;

• Consider the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued within a 5 year 
rolling programme as required by the Code for PPE and annually for Investment Property;

• Review assets not subject to valuation in 2018/19 to confirm that the remaining asset base is 
not materially misstated; and

• Test accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures.

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 10



13

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus (continued)
What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

IFRS 9 Financial instruments 

This new accounting standard is applicable for local authority accounts from the 
2018/19 financial year and will change:

• How financial assets are classified and measured;

• How the impairment of financial assets are calculated; and 

• The disclosure requirements for financial instruments.

There are transitional arrangements within the standard; and the 2018/19 CIPFA Code 
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting provides guidance on the application of IFRS 
9. 

Central government has indicated, following consultation, that statutory overrides for 
certain classes of financial assets will be put in place, however until these are 
confirmed there remains some uncertainty on the full accounting treatment.

The Councils are yet to undertake and document their assessment of the impact of 
IFRS9.

We will:

• assess the Councils’ implementation arrangements that should include 
an impact assessment paper setting out the application of the new 
standard, transitional adjustments and planned accounting for 
2018/19;

• consider the classification and valuation of financial instrument assets;

• review the implementation of the new expected credit loss model 
impairment calculations for assets; and

• check additional disclosure requirements for compliance with the CIPFA 
Code.

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

This new accounting standard is applicable for local authority accounts from the 
2018/19 financial year. The key requirements of the standard cover the identification 
of performance obligations under customer contracts and the linking of income to the 
meeting of those performance obligations.

The 2018/19 CIPFA Code of practice on local authority accounting provides guidance 
on the application of IFRS 15 and includes a useful flow diagram and commentary on 
the main sources of LG revenue and how they should be recognised.

The impact on local authority accounting is likely to be limited as large revenue 
streams like council tax, non domestic rates and government grants will be outside the 
scope of IFRS 15. However where that standard is relevant, the recognition of revenue 
may change and new disclosure requirements introduced.

The Councils are yet to undertake and document their assessment of the impact of 
IFRS15.

We will:

• Assess the Councils’ implementation arrangements that should include 
an impact assessment paper setting out the application of the new 
standard, transitional adjustments and planned accounting for 
2018/19.

• Consider application to the authority’s revenue streams, and where the 
standard is relevant test to ensure revenue is recognised when (or as) it 
satisfies a performance obligation; and

• Check additional disclosure requirements.P
age 51

A
genda Item

 10



14

Value for Money Risks03 01V
F
M

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 10



15

Value for Money

Background

We are required to consider whether the Councils have put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness on their use of resources. This is known as our value for money conclusion. 

For 2018/19 this is based on the overall evaluation criterion:

“In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people”

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise 
your arrangements to:

 Take informed decisions;
 Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and
 Work with partners and other third parties.

In considering your proper arrangements, we will draw on the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework 
for local government to ensure that our assessment is made against a framework that you are already required 
to have in place and to report on through documents such as your annual governance statement.

We are only required to determine whether there are any risks that we consider significant, which the Code of 
Audit Practice defines as:

“A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would 
be of interest to the audited body or the wider public”

Our risk assessment supports the planning of sufficient work to enable us to deliver a safe conclusion on 
arrangements to secure value for money and enables us to determine the nature and extent of further work 
that may be required. If we do not identify any significant risks there is no requirement to carry out further 
work. We consider business and operational risks insofar as they relate to proper arrangements at both sector 
and organisation-specific level.

Our risk assessment has therefore considered both the potential financial impact of the issues we have 
identified, and also the likelihood that the issue will be of interest to local taxpayers, the Government and other 
stakeholders. This has resulted in the identification of the significant risks noted on the following page which we 
view as relevant to our value for money conclusion.

V
F
M

Proper arrangements for 
securing value for money  

Informed 
decision making 

Working with 
partners and 
third parties

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 10



16

Value for Money

Value for Money Risks

V
F
M

What is the significant value for money risk?
What arrangements 
does the risk affect?

What will we do?

Implementation of the revised arrangements for the 5 Councils’ contract

In October 2017, the Councils entered into two contracts for the provision of corporate 
services, in partnership with Mendip District Council, Hart District Council and Havant 
Borough Council (known as the “Five Councils”). The services split into two lots; data-based 
services (Lot 1) and property based services (Lot 2).

These contracts were designed to generate savings of over £50 million for the Five Councils 
across their lifetime of nine years but the Councils have had to renegotiate Lot 1 and pull out 
of Lot 2 due to the issues with the way the contracts were constructed and the implications 
for the practical implementation of them.  

In October 2018, the Five Councils drafted the new Inter-Authority Agreement (IAA) which 
outlines the revised governance and cost sharing arrangements between them.  In addition 
to the above, there have been a number of issues noted during implementation of the 
services across the Five Councils. This has led to remedial action being taken across the five 
councils,

Given the likely changes to the contracts there is a risk that both the services and financial 
performance of the Council would be negatively impacted if renegotiation results in 
contracts that are difficult to implement or do not deliver the intended benefits.

Deploy resources in a 
sustainable manner

Partnership working 

We will:

• understand the revised Five Councils’ 
Partnership Inter-Authority Agreement
and the financial impact on the 
Councils;

• review the arrangements in place to 
monitor the implementation of the 
contract, in terms of whether

• expected savings are being 
realised; and 

• good operational performance 
exists.

• a review of the governance process 
and contracted terms in place over 
the revised corporate services
contract. 

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 10



17

Value for Money 

Value for Money Risks

V
F
M

What is the significant value for money risk? What arrangements does the risk affect? What will we do?

Programme Governance Review

The chairman of the Joint Audit & Governance 
Committee commissioned a review of decisions of the 
Councils between 2010 and 2016 after the 
identification of a number of control weaknesses.

There is a risk that current decisions are not based on a 
sound basis of properly recorded information, taken 
under the proper governance processes under the 
Councils’ constitutions.

Take informed decisions Our approach will focus on:

• Evaluating the arrangements put in place by the 
Councils to investigate the identified issues; and

• Reviewing the implementation of any actions 
resulting from the review

Financial Resilience (SODC only)

The South Oxfordshire DC Medium Term Financial Plan 
to 2023/24, and the accompanying s151 officer 
report, demonstrate that the Council will require 
significant contributions from its resources to balance 
the revenue budget.  

From 2021/22, they are currently estimated as being 
in the region of £5m per annum.

Deploy resources in a sustainable manner Our approach will focus on:

• Reviewing the key assumptions underpinning the 
Medium Term financial Plan; and

• Reviewing and assessing the adequacy of the 
actions the Council is taking to maintain it’s 
financial resilience in the medium term, and 
manage the risks of deteriorating balances.

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 10



18

Audit materiality04 01

P
age 56

A
genda Item

 10



19

Materiality

For planning purposes, materiality for 2017/18 has been set at 2% of the Councils’ prior year gross
expenditure on provision of services. It will be reassessed throughout the audit process.

The rationale for this is that for a public sector entity, the expectations of users (including regulators)
of the entity are focused on the measurement of expenditure and cost of services. Therefore gross
expenditure is the appropriate basis for determining materiality for public sector bodies.

We have provided supplemental information about audit materiality in Appendix C.

Audit materiality

Gross expenditure
on provision of services

£84.4m
Planning 

materiality

£1.689m

Performance 
materiality

£1.267m Audit
differences

£84k

Materiality

Planning materiality – the amount over which we anticipate 
misstatements would influence the economic decisions of a 
user of the financial statements.

Performance materiality – the amount we use to determine 
the extent of our audit procedures, which represents 75% of 
planning materiality. 

Audit difference threshold – we propose that misstatements 
identified below this threshold are deemed clearly trivial. We 
will report to you all uncorrected misstatements over this 
amount relating to the comprehensive income and expenditure 
statement, balance sheet, and collection fund that have an 
effect on income or that relate to other comprehensive income 
(OCI).

Other uncorrected misstatements, such as reclassifications and 
misstatements in the cashflow statement and movement in 
reserves statement or disclosures, and corrected 
misstatements will be communicated to the extent that they 
merit the attention of the Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee, or are important from a qualitative perspective. 

Key definitions

We request that the Joint Audit and Governance 
Committeeconfirm its understanding of, and agreement to, 
these materiality and reporting levels.

Gross expenditure
on provision of services

£81.2m
Planning 

materiality

£1.624m

Performance 
materiality

£1.218m Audit
differences

£81k

South Oxfordshire District Council

Vale of White Horse District Council

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 10



20

Scope of our audit05 01

P
age 58

A
genda Item

 10



21

Objective and Scope of our Audit scoping

Under the Code of Audit Practice our principal objectives are to review and report on the Council’s financial statements and arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources to the extent required by the relevant legislation and the requirements of the Code.

We issue an audit report that covers:

1. Financial statement audit 

Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards on Auditing (UK). 

We also perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards, the Code and other regulations. We outline below the procedures we 
will undertake during the course of our audit.

Procedures required by standards
• Addressing the risk of fraud and error;
• Significant disclosures included in the financial statements;
• Entity-wide controls;
• Reading other information contained in the financial statements and reporting whether it is inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and
• Auditor independence.

Procedures required by the Code
• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement; and
• Reviewing and reporting on the Whole of Government Accounts return, in line with the instructions issued by the NAO [delete if not applicable]

2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for money)

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 10



22

Audit Process Overview

Our audit involves: 
• Identifying and understanding the key processes and internal controls; and

• Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts.

For 2018/19 we plan to follow a substantive approach to the audit as we have concluded this is the most efficient way to obtain the level of audit assurance required 
to conclude that the financial statements are not materially misstated. 

Analytics:
We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of your financial data, in particular journal entries. These tools:
• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more traditional substantive audit tests; and 

• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques.

We will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including any significant weaknesses or inefficiencies identified and recommendations for 
improvement, to management and the Audit Committee. 

Internal audit:
We will meet with the Internal Audit Manager, and review internal audit plans and the results of their work. We will reflect the findings from these reports, together 
with reports from any other work completed in the year, in our detailed audit plan, where they raise issues that could have an impact on the financial statements.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy (continued)

P
age 60

A
genda Item

 10



23

Earlier deadline for production of the financial statements

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 introduced a significant change in statutory deadlines from the 2017/18 financial year. From that year the timetable for the 
preparation and approval of accounts will be brought forward with draft accounts needing to be prepared by 31 May and the publication of the accounts by 31 July.

These changes provide risks for both the preparers and the auditors of the financial statements:

• The Councils now have less time to prepare the financial statements and supporting working papers. 31 July was not achieved in 2017/18, and risks to the Council for this 
year include changes to your finance team from those that completed the 2017/18 accounts.

• As your auditor, we have a more significant peak in our audit work and a shorter period to complete the audit. Risks for auditors relate to delivery of all audits within same 
compressed timetable. Slippage at one client could potentially put delivery of others at risk.

To mitigate this risk we will require:

• good quality draft financial statements and supporting working papers by the agreed deadline;

• appropriate Council staff to be available throughout the agreed audit period; and

• complete and prompt responses to audit questions.

If you are unable to meet key dates within our agreed timetable, we will notify you of the impact on the timing of your audit, which may be that we postpone your audit until later 
in the summer and redeploy the team to other work to meet deadlines elsewhere. 

Where additional work is required to complete your audit, due to additional risks being identified, additional work being required as a result of scope changes, or poor audit 
evidence, we will notify you of the impact on the fee and the timing of the audit. Such circumstances may result in a delay to your audit while we complete other work elsewhere.

To support the Council we will:
• Work with the Council to engage early to  facilitate early substantive testing where appropriate.

• Provide an early review on the Council’s streamlining of the Statement of Accounts where non-material disclosure notes are removed.

• Facilitate faster close workshops to provide an interactive forum for Local Authority accountants and auditors to share good practice and ideas to enable us all to achieve a 
successful faster closure of accounts for the 2018/19 financial year.

• Work with the Council to embed the use of EY Client Portal, this will:

• Streamline our audit requests through a reduction of emails and improved means of communication;

• Provide on –demand visibility into the status of audit requests and the overall audit status;

• Reduce risk of duplicate requests; and

• Provide better security of sensitive data.

• Agree the team and timing of each element of our work with you. 

• Agree the supporting working papers that we require to complete our audit.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy (continued)

P
age 61

A
genda Item

 10



24

Audit team06 01

P
age 62

A
genda Item

 10



25

Audit team

Audit team 

Audit team structure:

Kevin Suter

Associate Partner

Malcolm Haines

Manager

* Key Audit Partner

Nimisha Mistry

Senior

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 10



26

Audit team

Use of specialists
• Our approach to the involvement of specialists, and the use of their work. 

When auditing key judgements, we are often required to rely on the input and advice provided by specialists who have qualifications and expertise not possessed by the 
core audit team. The areas where either EY or third party specialists are planned to provide input for the current year audit are:

Area Specialists

Pensions disclosure EY Actuaries

In accordance with Auditing Standards, we will evaluate each specialist’s professional competence and objectivity, considering their qualifications, experience and 
available resources, together with the independence of the individuals performing the work.

We also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the Council’s business and processes and our assessment of audit risk in the particular 
area. For example, we would typically perform the following procedures:

• Analyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the specialist to establish whether the source data is relevant and reliable;

• Assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used; 

• Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work; and

• Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the financial statements.

• We may also make use of specialists in our work to assess the material accuracy of property, plant and equipment, and investment property valuations.  Our risk 
assessment in this area is ongoing.

P
age 64

A
genda Item

 10



27

Audit timeline07 01

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 10



28

Audit timeline

Below is a timetable showing the key stages of the audit and the deliverables we have agreed to provide to you through the audit cycle in 2018/19.

From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the Joint Audit and Governance Committee and we will discuss them with the Joint 
Audit and Governance Committee Chairs as appropriate. We will also provide updates on corporate governance and regulatory matters as necessary.

Timeline

Timetable of communication and deliverables

Jan Mar JulOct Feb MaySep Dec Apr Jun AugNov

Planning Substantive testingWalkthroughs 
+Interim Audit

Planning

Risk assessment and setting of scopes

Audit Plan

Reporting our 
independence, risk 

assessment, planned 
audit approach and the 

scope of our audit

Walkthroughs +Interim 
Audit

Walkthrough of key 
systems and processes and 

early substantive testing

Joint Audit and 
Governance 

Committee Update

Reporting by exception on 
our interim work and any 

control observations

Annual Audit Letter

The Annual Audit Letter 
will be provided following 
completion of our audit 

procedures

Audit Results Report

Reporting our conclusions on 
key judgements and estimates 

and confirmation of our 
independence

Year End Audit

Work begins on our year 
end audit. This is when we 

will complete any 
substantive testing not 
completed at interim

P
age 66

A
genda Item

 10



29

Independence08 01

P
age 67

A
genda Item

 10



30

Independence

The FRC Ethical Standard and ISA (UK) 260 “Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance”, requires us to communicate with you on a timely basis 
on all significant facts and matters that bear upon our integrity, objectivity and independence. The Ethical Standard, as revised in June 2016, requires that we 
communicate formally both at the planning stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the course of the audit if appropriate.  The aim of these 
communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by us to those charged with your governance on matters in which you have an interest.

In addition, during the course of the audit, we are required to communicate with you whenever any significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and 
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place, for example, when accepting an engagement to provide non-audit services.

We also provide information on any contingent fee arrangements , the amounts of any future services that have been contracted, and details of any written proposal to 
provide non-audit services that has been submitted;

We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you and your affiliates for the provision of services during the reporting period, 
analysed in appropriate categories, are disclosed.

Required communications

Planning stage Final stage

► The principal threats, if any, to objectivity and 
independence identified by Ernst & Young (EY) 
including consideration of all relationships between 
the you, your affiliates and directors and us;

► The safeguards adopted and the reasons why they 
are considered to be effective, including any 
Engagement Quality review;

► The overall assessment of threats and safeguards;

► Information about the general policies and process 
within EY to maintain objectivity and independence.

► Where EY has determined it is appropriate to apply 
more restrictive independence rules than permitted 
under the Ethical Standard [note: additional 
wording should be included in the communication 
reflecting the client specific situation]

► In order for you to assess the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm and each covered person, 
we are required to provide a written disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-audit 
services) that may bear on our integrity, objectivity and independence. This is required to have regard to 
relationships with the entity, its directors and senior management, its affiliates, and its connected parties 
and the threats to integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence that these 
create.  We are also required to disclose any safeguards that we have put in place and why they address 
such threats, together with any other information necessary to enable our objectivity and independence to 
be assessed;

► Details of non-audit services provided and the fees charged in relation thereto;

► Written confirmation that the firm and each covered person is  independent and, if applicable, that any 
non-EY firms used in the group audit or external experts used have confirmed their independence to us;

► Written confirmation that all covered persons are independent;

► Details of any inconsistencies between FRC Ethical Standard and your  policy for the supply of non-audit 
services by EY and any apparent breach of that policy; 

► Details of any contingent fee arrangements for non-audit services provided by us or our network firms; 
and

► An opportunity to discuss auditor independence issues.

Introduction

P
age 68

A
genda Item

 10



31

Independence

We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to bear upon our objectivity and independence, including the principal threats, 
if any.  We have adopted the safeguards noted below to mitigate these threats along with the reasons why they are considered to be effective. However we will only 
perform non –audit services if the service has been pre-approved in accordance with your policy.

Self interest threats

A self interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in the Council.  Examples include where we receive significant fees in respect of non-audit services; 
where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we enter into a business relationship with you.  At the time of writing, there are no long outstanding fees. 

We believe that it is appropriate for us to undertake permissible non-audit services and we will comply with the policies that you have approved.  

None of the services are prohibited under the FRC's ES or the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 and the services have been approved in accordance with 
your policy on pre-approval. The ratio of non audit fees to audits fees is not permitted to exceed 70%.

At the time of writing, we have not undertaken any non-audit work.  We plan to undertake the Housing Benefit Assurance Process, and the fee is less than the 70% limit. 

A self interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services to you.  We 
confirm that no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service lines, has objectives or is rewarded in relation to sales to you, in compliance 
with Ethical Standard part 4.

There are no other self interest threats at the date of this report. 

Overall Assessment

Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the principal threats identified and we therefore confirm that EY is independent 
and the objectivity and independence of Kevin Suter, your audit engagement partner, and the audit engagement team have not been compromised.

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Self review threats

Self review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in 
the financial statements. From 2018-19, the Council is responsible for appointing their own reporting accountant to undertake the certification of the housing benefit 
subsidy claim in accordance with the Housing Benefit Assurance Process (HBAP) requirements that are being established by the DWP.  DWP’s HBAP guidance has now 
been published and the Council has appointed EY as its reporting accountant from 2018-19 for a period of one year, subject to the agreement of an engagement letter.

The specific testing of individual benefit claims and associated subsidy calculations undertaken in respect of this Agreed Upon Procedure (AUP) engagement is distinct 
and separate to any work we have or will undertake on the financial systems of the Authority.  The results of the AUP testing is not reflected in the amounts 
included/disclosed in the financial statements.

In respect of the checking of benefit system parameters, this work is common across our external audit procedures and this AUP engagement.  However, our external 
audit is concluded prior to this AUP engagement.  Therefore the external audit conclusion is therefore not reliant upon the conclusion of our AUP engagement.

No advice will be given in relation to accounting treatment. The report we provide will be prepared or given solely for the purposes of the agreed upon procedures 
engagement described above and will not be used or relied upon for any other purposes.

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 10



32

Independence

Other threats

Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise.

There are no other threats at the date of this report. 

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Other communications

EY Transparency Report 2018

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence 
and integrity are maintained. 

Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm 
is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year ended 1 July 2018 and can be found here: 

http://www.ey.com/uk/en/about-us/ey-uk-transparency-report-2018

Management threats

Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of management of the Council.  Management threats may also arise during the provision of 
a non-audit service in relation to which management is required to make judgements or decision based on that work.

There are no management threats at the date of this report. 

P
age 70

A
genda Item

 10

http://www.ey.com/uk/en/about-us/ey-uk-transparency-report-2017


33

Appendices09 01

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 10



34

Appendix A

Fees

Planned fee 
2018/19

Scale fee
2018/19

Final Fee
2017/18

£ £ £

Total Fee – Code work 37,103 37,103 73,408

Total audit 37,103 37,103 73,408

Non-audit services (Housing
Benefits)

9,433 n/a 10,972

Total non-audit services 9,433 n/a 10.972

Total fees 46.356 37,103 84,380

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) has published the fee scale for the audit of the 2018/19 accounts of opted-in principal local government and police bodies. 

This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the requirements 
of the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

All fees exclude VAT

Assumptions:

The agreed fee presented is based on the following assumptions:

► Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;

► Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being 
unqualified;

► Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Council; and

► The Council has an effective control environment.

If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we will seek a 
variation to the agreed fee. This will be discussed with the Council in 
advance.

Fees for the auditor’s consideration of correspondence from the public 
and formal objections will be charged in addition to the scale fee.

Vale of White Horse District Council

South Oxfordshire District Council

Planned fee 
2018/19

Scale fee
2018/19

Final Fee
2017/18

£ £ £

Total Fee – Code work 36,289 36,289 68,000

Total audit 36,289 36,289 68,000

Non-audit services (Housing
Benefits)

9,433 n/a 11,616

Total non-audit services 9,433 n/a 11,616

Total fees 45,722 36,289 79,616

Notes:

(1) The final Code fees for 2017/18 remain subject to confirmation by 
PSAA.

(2) We anticipate scale fee variations will be likely for 2018/19:

(a) Our strategy anticipates additional procedures highlighted in section 
two of this report to address the new accounting requirements of 
IFRS 9 and IFRS 15. As at the date of our planning report the 
Councils are yet to evidence their assessment of the impact of these 
standards, and so we cannot currently quantify the expected scale 
fee variation.

(b) The number of VFM risks is increased in comparison to prior years, 
requiring additional work.

We will agree any fee variation with management, and any additional fee 
is subject to agreement by the PSAA

P
age 72

A
genda Item

 10



35

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Joint Audit & Governance Committee of acceptance of terms of 
engagement as written in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the 
formal terms of engagement between the 
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies. 

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter The statement of responsibilities serves as the 
formal terms of engagement between the 
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Planning and audit 
approach 

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the 
significant risks identified.

Audit planning report

Significant findings from 
the audit 

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including 
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit

• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management

• Written representations that we are seeking

• Expected modifications to the audit report

• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit results report

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, including:

• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty

• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements

• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit results report

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited by 
law or regulation 

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods 

• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected 

• Corrected misstatements that are significant

• Material misstatements corrected by management 

Audit results report

Appendix B

Required communications with those charged with governance
We have detailed the communications that we must provide to the Joint Audit & Governance Committee.

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 10



36

Appendix B

Required communications with those charged with governance

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Fraud • Enquiries of the Joint Audit & Governance Committee to determine whether they have 
knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a 
fraud may exist

• A discussion of any other matters related to fraud

Audit results report

Related parties • Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties 
including, when applicable:

• Non-disclosure by management 

• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions 

• Disagreement over disclosures 

• Non-compliance with laws and regulations 

• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity 

Audit results report

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals 
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence

Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of 
independence and objectivity such as:

• The principal threats

• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness

• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards

• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity 
and independence

Audit Planning Report and Audit Results 
Report

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations 

• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures

Audit results report

P
age 74

A
genda Item

 10



37

Appendix B

Required communications with those charged with governance

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Consideration of laws and 
regulations 

• Audit findings regarding non-compliance where the non-compliance is material and 
believed to be intentional. This communication is subject to compliance with legislation 
on tipping off

• Enquiry of the Joint Audit & Governance Committee into possible instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial 
statements and that the Joint Audit & Governance Committee may be aware of

Audit results report

Internal controls • Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit Audit results report

Representations Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with 
governance

Audit results report

Material inconsistencies 
and misstatements

Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which 
management has refused to revise

Audit results report

Auditors report • Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report Audit results report

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit plan is agreed

• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit

• Any non-audit work 

Audit planning report

Audit results report

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 10



38

Appendix C

Additional audit information

Our responsibilities  required 
by auditing standards

• Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

• Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Councils’ internal control.

• Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

• Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting. 

• Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the 
Councils to express an opinion on the financial statements. Reading other information contained in the financial statements, the
Joint Audit & Governance Committee reporting appropriately addresses matters communicated by us to the Joint Audit & 
Governance Committee and reporting whether it is materially inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and

• Maintaining auditor independence.

Other required procedures during the course of the audit

In addition to the key areas of audit focus outlined in section 2, we have to perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards and 
other regulations. We outline the procedures below that we will undertake during the course of our audit.

P
age 76

A
genda Item

 10



39

Appendix C

Additional audit information (continued)

Purpose and evaluation of materiality 

For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, 
individually or in the aggregate, in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial 
statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional judgement and necessarily takes into account qualitative as well as quantitative considerations implicit in the 
definition. We would be happy to discuss with you your expectations regarding our detection of misstatements in the financial statements. 

Materiality determines:

• The locations at which we conduct audit procedures to support the opinion given on the financial statements; and

• The level of work performed on individual account balances and financial statement disclosures.

The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all of the 
circumstances that may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could 
be significant to users of the accounts, including the total effect of the audit misstatements we identify, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 10



Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of Corporate Fraud Officer 
Author: Fergus Nugent
Telephone: 01235 422506
Textphone: 18001 01235 422510
E-mail: fergus.nugent@southandvale.gov.uk
SODC Cabinet member responsible: Councillor David Dodds
Tel: 01844 212891
E-mail: david.dodds@southoxon.gov.uk
VWHDC Cabinet member responsible: Councillor Robert Sharp
Tel: 07771 760549
E-mail: robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee
DATE:  25 March 2019

Corporate Fraud and Cyber Security 
Risk Review
Recommendation
That members note the content of the report

Purpose of report

1. The purpose of this report is:

 to provide an update on the corporate fraud and cyber security risk review, 
commissioned by strategic management team (SMT); and

 to summarise current progress and initial findings.

Page 78

Agenda Item 11

mailto:fergus.nugent@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


2. The contact officer for this report is Fergus Nugent, Corporate Fraud Officer 
(fixed term contract) for South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of 
White Horse District Council (VWHDC), telephone 01235 422506.

Strategic objectives 

3. Delivery of a corporate fraud and cyber security risk assessment will support 
the councils in meeting their strategic objectives.

Background

4. The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accounting (CIPFA) fraud and 
corruption report (2018) reported that 80,000 frauds totalling £302 million were 
detected or prevented by local authorities in 2017/2018.  Cybercrime has also 
become more prevalent, with targeted attacks at commercial and government 
levels, requiring a dynamic and proactive approach to IT security, particularly 
as SODC and VWHDC increase the amount of online self service offerings.

5. SMT recognise the potential for additional risk that this move to online delivery 
of services may bring to SODC and VWHDC and have agreed to an 
independent review of corporate fraud and cyber security risks that may impact 
both councils.  The purpose of this assessment is to identify the key fraud and 
cyber security risks across SODC and VWHDC and to validate the 
effectiveness of any mitigating controls.

6. The councils’ approach to fraud is documented in the joint anti-fraud, bribery 
and corruption policy.  This review will evaluate how operational behaviours 
align to this policy.

This activity is undertaken in addition to the existing activities to manage fraud 
risk, including our annual pro-active anti-fraud audit, and the work carried out 
by our in-house fraud management team specifically focused on benefit and 
council tax fraud.

Approach

7. The following steps will be undertaken during the review:

7.1. Compile a list of corporate fraud and cyber security risks for SODC and 
VWHDC based on benchmarking against other similar councils, key 
outputs from the recent Local Government Association (LGA) cyber 
security risk survey, and input from heads of service on key risks for each 
service area.

7.2. Conduct interviews with service managers and staff officers to identify 
mitigating controls for each risk area.

7.3. Evaluate the operating effectiveness of mitigating controls through control 
testing.

7.4. Assign a post-mitigation risk score for each individual fraud and cyber 
security risk and assess any residual risk.

Page 79

Agenda Item 11



7.5. Develop corporate fraud and cyber security summary risk matrices.

7.6. Evaluate the content of relevant corporate policies.

7.7. Create a corporate fraud and cyber security risk training pack, 
summarising key learnings from the assessment.

Progress update

8. Interviews to identify key risks across service areas have now been held with 
heads of service and staff officers. Risk tracking spreadsheet for corporate 
fraud and cyber security risks have been created and non-mitigated risk scores 
have been assigned (Appendix 1).  The risk tracking spreadsheet currently has 
39 corporate fraud and 27 cyber security risks 

9. As at 3 March 2019, 29 out of 39 of fraud and 22 out of 29 cyber security risks 
have been reviewed and tested.  Testing of the remaining controls is in 
progress, once completed the risk matrices will be populated.

10. It should be noted for the cyber security review many of the controls are 
performed by Capita and in the absence of third party testing we are dependent 
on Capita to provide assurance that the controls are in place and operating 
effectively.

11. Preparation of a fraud awareness training pack is in progress.

12. A final report together with documentation outcomes will be reported to the 
July 2019 joint Audit and Governance Committee.  Recommendations will be 
considered for incorporation into the 2019/2020 internal audit plan.

Documentation outcomes

13. The corporate fraud officer will produce a summary of findings and 
recommendations for each area reviewed.  In support of this, the review will 
document the following:

 Corporate fraud and cyber security risk summary matrices, highlighting key 
risk areas.

 The review will include an assessment of applicable council policies to 
determine if they are accessible, up to date, relevant, and whether they 
have been communicated to staff officers.

 The review will document a fraud awareness training pack focused on risks 
specific to SODC and VWHDC. 

 The corporate fraud officer will provide input into the councils’ cyber 
security training.

 The corporate fraud officer will produce a summary of findings and 
recommendations for each area reviewed.

Page 80

Agenda Item 11



Financial implications

14. The review is likely to identify a range of potential financial implications to 
SODC and VWHDC resulting from corporate fraud risks that are not mitigated.  
In addition to any financial loss the reputation of the councils may be impacted 
if a cyber security incident impacted the councils’ ability to deliver services, or if 
sensitive data was compromised.

Legal implications

15. Within the annual governance statements, the councils set out the financial and 
risk governance frameworks.  This review may identify areas where the 
councils are failing to deliver against their commitments, which could have legal 
implications.  The following regulations and standards relate to the 
management of corporate fraud and cyber security risks:

 GDPR (General Data Protection Regulation 2018) – the councils are 
required to secure sensitive data and restrict its use to that agreed by the 
customer.

 PCI DSS – (Payment Card Industry - Data Security Standards), the 
councils have an obligation to comply with payment card industry 
standards.  Non-compliance may result in the councils losing their ability to 
process credit card payments.

 Cyber security standards – the councils should, wherever possible, align to 
the guidance issued by the National Cyber Security Centre (NCSC) to help 
protect against cyber security issues.

Risks implications

16. This review will provide an assessment of the key corporate fraud and cyber 
security risks facing both SODC and VWHDC.  Based on the outcomes from 
this review, additional mitigation actions may be required.

17. It should be noted that this review is still in progress, which may result in further 
risks being identified.  

Other Implications

18. None.

Conclusion

19. None.

Appendices

 Appendix 1 - 3X3 Risk Score Matrix

 Appendix 2 - Exemplification of Fraud Risk Summary Matrix

 Appendix 3 – Exemplification of Fraud Risk tracker

Page 81

Agenda Item 11



 Appendix 4 - Exemplification of Cyber Risk tracker

FERGUS NUGENT

CORPORATE FRAUD OFFICER

Page 82

Agenda Item 11



Appendix 1 - 3X3 Risk Score Matrix

3X3 Risk Score Matrix

South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council Risk Management 
Policy and Guidance 2017 -2019

Page 83

Agenda Item 11



: Exemplification Appendix 2: Exemplification Fraud Risk Summary Matrix

Fraud Risk Summary - March 2019
Fraud Risk profile 
Net evaluation
 

Risks:                                                         
(ranked by priority band, numbering is for referencing purposes only) reviewing the top risks  
     
Critical: 
2F Procurement-supplier selection, suppliers are selected outside the agreed process resulting in
preferential treatment for some suppliers, potential for bribery and poor quality goods/services. Risk owner name

High:
8F. Overtime payments/TOIL abuse, overtime and TOIL claims are submitted and authorised when there is
 no entitlement. Risk owner name
  3F. Fraud risk name, further details on the actual risk. Risk owner name
15F. Fraud risk name, further details on the actual risk. Risk owner name
22F. Fraud risk name, further details on the actual risk. Risk owner name
11F. Fraud risk name, further details on the actual risk. Risk owner name 
12F. Fraud risk name, further details on the actual risk. Risk owner name
20F. Fraud risk name, further details on the actual risk. Risk owner name

LIKELIHOOD
1) remote

(< 10%)
2) possible

(10 - 50%)
3) likely

(> 50%)

3) Critical
impact
(>£10m) 

2) Major
impact
(£10M-5m)

1) Manageable
impact

(< £5m)

1 V Low

2/3 Low

2/3 Low

6 Medium

5 Medium

4 Medium

8 High 9

7 High

Fraud Risk Profile

15F

12F

11F

2F

3F22F

20F

8F

P
age 84

A
genda Item

 11



Exemplification Appendix 3: Exemplification of  Fraud  Risk Tracker

Ref Function Sub Function Risk
Likelihood Impact

Pre Mitigated Risk 

Score
Mitigation Control test

Outcome and 

Recommendation
Likelihood Impact

Post Mitigation 
Risk Score

1F Procurement Supplier Selection  Supplier is given preferential 

treatment and selected 

outside the agreed process -

potential for bribery

2 3 8

Robust process to select 

vendors including 

documented RFP and 

scoring and selection 

process for large value 

vendors, Segregation of 

duties , both service user 

and procurement 

involvement 

Review a sample of recent 

successful vendors at each  £ 

value within the process to 

confirm that the relevant 

selection process was 

followed.

Two contracts selected for 

review. 2 X high value (£75k) 

contracts reviewed to 

confirm that procurement 

process was followed. Laser 

(Gas and Electricity)  and  

Noahs Ark ( Dog warden 

services) Barnewood Kennels 

Ltd  (Dog Kennelling and re-

homing). Evidenced the 

ICMD’s (INDIVIDUAL 

CABINET MEMBER DECISION) 

for both contracts took 

place.  Copy contracts for  

1 2 2/3

2F contract awarded outside of 

agreed process to companies 

that employee/council 

members have an association 

with

2 2 5

3F Gifts and 

Hospitality 

Gifts are used to influence 

people
2 2 5

4F Business Rates invalid reductions in business 

rates are allowed where 

business does not meet 

required  criteria ( e.g. small 

business, charitable )

2 2 5

5F Whistle-Blower if we do not have  an up to 

date whistle blower  policy 

and process we will not 

encourage reporting of any 

fraud issues

2 2 5

6F Payroll Non standard pay 

increases

collusion between employee 

and manager resulting in 

excessive pay increase 

awarded.

2 1 2/3

7F Temp/Contractor 

payment process

Ghost temps/Contracts are 

created and paid.  Existing 

contractors continue to be 

paid after termination

2 1 2/3

8F Overtime 

payments/TOIL 

claims/excessive claims for 

overtime are submitted and 

paid when no over time has 

been worked

2 1 2/3

9F Sick Pay Sick pay being claimed 

employee who is not actually 

sick

2 1 2/3

10F Expense claims- 

Travel/Subsistence

inflated or invalid expense or 

mileage claims  being 

submitted paid

2 1 2/3

P
age 85

A
genda Item

 11



Exemplification Appendix 3: Exemplification of  Fraud  Risk Tracker

Ref Function Sub Function Risk
Likelihood Impact

Pre Mitigated Risk 

Score
Mitigation Control test

Outcome and 

Recommendation
Likelihood Impact

Post Mitigation 
Risk Score

11F Insurance Fraudulent claims- payment 

of compensation for false 

claims resulting in financial 

cost to the council or 

increased premium where the 

risk is insured

2 1 2/3

12F Planning Potential for bribery to ensure 

planning permission is 

granted or 

2 2 5

13F Bank Account Compromise of bank 

account details for 

online banking

Misuse of the council bank 

accounts can result in 

financial loss to the council. 
2 3 8

14F Unauthorised item 

paid from bank 

account

To prevent unauthorised 

expenditure from Council 

bank account

2 1 2/3

16F DD/Standing 

order/recurring pays

a recurring DD/standing order  

could be put in place to divert 

funds to a fraudulent bank 

account

2 1 2/3

17F Cash Offices Receipt of payments 

in  on behalf of both 

Councils for 

services. Payments 

processed by 

cheques, payment 

card and cash across 

two sites.

Cash is receipted but not 

lodged to council account, 

card details are compromised, 

cheques are stolen and payee 

altered, 
3 2 7

18F Licencing Theft or misappropriation of 

payment fees.  Granting of 

licencs without fees being 

paid. Granting of licences 

without verifying relevent 

qualification 

(medical/knowledge etc)

2 1 2/3

19F CHAPS/BACS one 

off emergency 

payments

transaction not 

authorised in 

accordance with 

mandate

CHAPS transfer being done 

outside of agreed controls 

process (i.e. not correctly 

authorised).unauthorised 

payments  would debit our 

bank account resulting in 

financial losss

2 2 5

20F Petty Cash misappropriation of 

petty cash

Theft of cash. Personal use  of 

cash for non council expenses 2 1 2/3

21F Council credit 

cards

Expenditure review card being used 

inappropriately, personal 

expenditure charged to 

council

2 1 2/3

P
age 86

A
genda Item

 11



Exemplification Appendix 3: Exemplification of  Fraud  Risk Tracker

Ref Function Sub Function Risk
Likelihood Impact

Pre Mitigated Risk 

Score
Mitigation Control test

Outcome and 

Recommendation
Likelihood Impact

Post Mitigation 
Risk Score

22F Tenancy Right to buy Property is sold  by the the 

council to people who have 

no entitlement to purchase 

from the council or who 

frauduently obtain a discount 

they are not entitled to.

n/a n/a

23F subletting Council provided houses are 

sublet to third parties by 

tenants

n/a n/a

24F Parking Revenue council not receiving full 

revenue for car parking fees.   

Fees not being collected, fees 

being circumvented, fees  not 

being passed on in full from 

third party, excess fees are 

charged, refunds are  not 

correctly validated

2 2 5

25F Revenue and 

Benefits

NNRD-reductions in 

busines rates, 

council tax , other 

discressionary 

discounts (rural 

rates , Charity, small 

business etc)

Fraudulent reductions being 

applied for,   payments being 

misappropriated,  credits 

being granted without correct 

authorisation, 
3 3 9

26F Debt collection- 

Council tax, Sundry 

billing 

Debt not collected in line with 

policy. Debt on hold, 

collection and billing 

suppressed. debt write off. 

Ageing debt, pending write 

off pot

2 2 7

27F Recruitment new post 

authorisation

ghost employee/roles created 

and salary paid into 

fraudulent accounts

2 1 2/3

28F Vetting and 

background 

checking

Risk to the business if 

qualification are not validated 

or if career history is not 

checked and verified. 

References not being 

obtained could resutlt in a 

person of risk being employed 

tby the council 

2 2 5

Non Core 

Financial activity

29F  Charitable 

Lottery

Promotion by 

Council of SO 

Charitable Lottery

Brand damage if the lottery 

was subject to any fraud 

issues. Loss of revenue if we 

weren't paid our rightful 

share

2 1 2/3

30F Cornerstone Arts 

Centre

Ticket Sales Payment not received. tickets 

supplied FOC to friends and 

acquaintances. 

3 1 4

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 11



Exemplification Appendix 3: Exemplification of  Fraud  Risk Tracker

Ref Function Sub Function Risk
Likelihood Impact

Pre Mitigated Risk 

Score
Mitigation Control test

Outcome and 

Recommendation
Likelihood Impact

Post Mitigation 
Risk Score

31F Café Business Cash takings not 

reconciled/banked. Goods 

supplied FOC to friends and 

acquaintances. Stock theft. 

Business has insufficient 

controls to identify weekly 

profit/loss to allow it to 

identify if there are control 

issues

3 1 4

32F Café Business Cash takings not 

reconciled/banked. Goods 

supplied FOC to friends and 

acquaintances. Stock theft. 

Business has insufficient 

controls to identify weekly 

profit/loss to allow it to 

identify if there are control 

issues

3 1 4

33F Beacon Wantage Entertainment 

centre

Cash not received. Good 

supplied FOC to friends and 

acquaintances. Business has 

not got sufficient controls and 

sight of profit/loss of café on 

a weekly basis to allow 

management  to identify if 

there is any control issues. 

High value bar stock may be 

especially prone to loss

3 1 4

34F Debt collection collection process Debt may not be collected 

within the agreed policy, 

incorrect suppression of 

collections action,  Debt may 

be written off  without 

following due process or 

remain uncollected outside of 

agreed terms

2 2 5

35F Lyreco-supplier of  

miscellaneous 

office supplies to 

both councils

personal good ordered on 

council account, goods 

delivered to non council 

addresses, goods invoiced but 

not received

2 1 2/3

36F Assett 

disposal/sale

End of life assets with zero 

book value are disposed of 

and payment is not passed 

back to council

2 1 2/3

37F Creditors/Accoun

ts payable

Payments made 

against invalid 

invoices

Supplier invoices for excessive 

amounts, invoices multiple 

times, invoices for good not 

supplied etc

2 1

2/3

38F invoice ammended  

and  excessive 

payment made

2 2

5

P
age 88

A
genda Item

 11



Exemplification Appendix 3: Exemplification of  Fraud  Risk Tracker

Ref Function Sub Function Risk
Likelihood Impact

Pre Mitigated Risk 

Score
Mitigation Control test

Outcome and 

Recommendation
Likelihood Impact

Post Mitigation 
Risk Score

39F Accounts payable Beneficiary account 

amended  to divert 

payments

council defrauded  of cash 

amounts

3 2

7

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 11



Exemplification Appendix 4: Exemplification of  Cyber Risk Tracker

Ref Function Sub Function Risk Likelihood Impact Pre Mitigation 

Risk Score

Mitigation Control test Outcome and Recommendation Likelihood Impact Post Mitigation 

Risk Score

1C Data Security Data Extracts Unauthorised data  extracts are 

being  run to extract data for non 

business use or sale to external 

third parties
2 3 8

Control reports produced from 

systems to identify  data 

extracts being created and 

these should be flagged to our 

data controller  to validate that 

there is a legitimate business 

reason for these extracts

Test  to see if large data file being  

extracted  mailed/uploaded/saved to pen 

drive raises any flags within the system  

Test evidenced that this is not locked 

down and data files can be e-mail out 

with no  blocking/inspection or alerting-

only restriction is file size. No evidence 

that audit logs from any systems are 

reviewed to check for data extracts

2 3 8

2C Portable  data storage Data is downloaded to portable 

storage devices, pen drives/data 

sticks etc.  without being encrypted 

and if lost there is a reputational 

risk
2 2 5

Data extracted to portable 

devices or being e-mailed 

should be encrypted

Download sample  data file  to a pen 

drive and  read the file from a non 

council PC.  Test evidenced that this is 

locked down- data can only be 

downloaded if Bitlocker encryption is 

installed on the pen drive, meaning that 

the data can only be view from the 

device if the encryption password is 

entered

Portable Storage (USB) is locked down 

by default. 

Capita provided, Encrypted devices that 

can be used.  Removable media policy 

should be adapted by the council and 

issue to all staff and posted in an 

accessible area

1 2 2/3

3C Internet access allows the posting 

of data files  offsite

Data files can be posted to cloud 

storage site such as One Drive etc 3 2 7

4C E-mail monitoring lack of  e-mail monitoring  could 

result in restricted data such as  

customer lists, credit card details 

etc. being sent out of the business

2 2 5

5C Data Storage- sensitive data 

encrypted

if access to our systems is 

compromised and sensitive  data 

can be easily read and used if 

compromised.    

3 2 7

6C Data back up-Essential services 

data is not backed up

Q58 Cyber security stocktake- 

essential service data is not 

backed up

2 3 8

7C Electoral roll security. Security of 

electoral roll data being share with 

third parties (e.g. printers,  etc.)

Data  is compromised and 

released into public domain. 

Reputational damage
2 2 5

8C Internet access Access is not restricted to work 

related sites and unrestricted 

access is allowed to site which may 

contain malicious 

software/Trojans/spyware

By accessing these sites users 

may inadvertently download a 

virus/spyware onto the council 

network.

3 2 7

9C IT- Acceptable use 

policy

ensure the councils have an 

acceptable use policy and a 

process to ensure new starters are 

obliged to read it and records 

retained of who has read the policy

employees may compromise our IT 

security unless we set out clearly 

the behaviour we expect of them 

and ensure they have read and 

understood it

3 2 7

10C Payment Gateway 

security

Payment gateway security Non compliant  payment gateway 

may put us in breech of PCI 

(Payment Card Industry) rules and 

compromise our customers card 

details

2 2 5

11C E  mail E-mail activity use of council e-mail to send non 

council or non work related activity 

(e.g. personal mail, spam, 

inappropriate content etc) could 

result in reputational risk  and or 

possible compensation claims

3 1 4

P
age 90

A
genda Item

 11



Exemplification Appendix 4: Exemplification of  Cyber Risk Tracker

Ref Function Sub Function Risk Likelihood Impact Pre Mitigation 

Risk Score

Mitigation Control test Outcome and Recommendation Likelihood Impact Post Mitigation 

Risk Score

12C Activity monitoring/ 

reporting

network activity monitoring lack of sight of  the activity on our 

network could mean we have no 

sight of the risk activity happening 

on our network  resulting in our 

network being hacked. Eg could be 

used to send spam mail, attempts 

to compromise website,  telephone 

systems could be compromised 

and abused, 

2 2 5

13C Public presence Council impersonation websites customer impact, negative public 

impact
1 1 1

14C JML process lack of a robust  JML process could 

compromise system security and 

allow ex employees to retain 

access to web hosted systems 

after they leave council 

employment. 

unauthorised access would 

compromise data security

3 3 9

15C Access controls Control of access to our systems 

should be by means of an effective  

Active Directory which controls  

users and their access to our 

various systems NB ensure all 

standalone systems are included in 

this 

if the Active Directory is not kept 

updated and linked to our JML 

(joiners/movers/leavers) process 

in order to ensure users  are 

removed or access rights are 

configured correctly then there is a 

danger that systems can be 

accessed by unauthorised 

individuals outside their allocated 

permissions.  

3 3 9

16C DDOS (Denial of 

services) attacks on 

our website

attempts made to compromise our 

public facing website preventing 

public from accessing to obtain 

service

3 2 7

17C Planing files 

acceptance- risk 

that we could 

import 

virus/spyware/troja

n

Terrraquest- planning portal 

provider- virus, malware or 

ransomeware files passed into 

council via our 3rd party planning 

site. Are attachments screened  

before releasing to the council.       

2) Terraquest payment systems is 

not PCI compliant resulting in our 

customer payment details being 

compromised

2 1 2/3

18C Visitor WIFI if visitor WIFI is not ringfenced and 

separate from the council network 

there is a risk it could be used to 

compromise security of the council 

network. 

2 2 5

19C Mobile devices Council Mobile devices not secure- 

risk of data loss or corruption of 

device by virus

2 2 5

20C Computer sharing 

site

Risk of third party remotely 

accessing  council PCs by using 

remote access software-we should 

block sites such as LetMeIn, 

Teamviewer. Etc.

2 3 8

21C Computer disposal End of life IT kit (computers, 

servers, mobiles, laptops and pads  

are not cleaned of data pre 

disposal

3 2 7

22C Webpage 

vulnerability 

scanning

website has vulnerability in it 

design or configuration which 

allows hackers to compromise the 

councils website

3 3 9

P
age 91

A
genda Item

 11



Exemplification Appendix 4: Exemplification of  Cyber Risk Tracker

Ref Function Sub Function Risk Likelihood Impact Pre Mitigation 

Risk Score

Mitigation Control test Outcome and Recommendation Likelihood Impact Post Mitigation 

Risk Score

23C Password policies if passwords do not comply to a 

robust secure format and we do 

not enforce password change on a 

regular basis there is a risk that 

password could be compromised.  

Also check we block concurrent 

logins from the same user id. 

(Applies to all systems)

2 2 5

24C Social Media Adverse postings or comments by 

employees on social media may 

compromise the council and lead 

to reputational damage

2 1 2/3

25C Remote access 

security

 Risk of unauthorised access and 

lack of management information if 

we do not have secured access 

controls to support our  strategy of  

an IT environment that not only 

supports deep collaboration but 

continues to enable our staff to 

work flexibly but securely, anytime, 

anywhere and with colleagues 

from other organisations.

3 3 9

26C Governance and 

Controls

IT security is not defined or 

delivered to the agreed standards 

which protect the council and 

ensure delivery of  a service that 

enables the council to achieve its 

business goals.  Poor governance 

may introduce risk in our IT 

services  as we may not track and 

report on contractual obligations in 

place to reduce our cyber security 

risk

3 3 9

27C Cyber Incident 

response plan

Lack of a Cyber security incident 

response plan, tested and 

supported by awareness of 

responsibilities and actions 

required in the event of an 

incident,  would leave the council 

exposed in the event of a cyber 

security attack.  

2 3 8

P
age 92

A
genda Item

 11



Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of Internal Audit Manager
Author: Victoria Hughes
Telephone: 01235 422430
Textphone: 18001 01235 422510
E-mail: victoria.hughes@southandvale.gov.uk
SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor David Dodds
Tel: 01844 212891
E-mail: david.dodds@southoxon.gov.uk
VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Robert Sharp
Telephone: 07771 760549
E-mail: robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee
DATE: 25 March 2019

Internal audit activity report quarter four 
2018/2019 
Recommendation

That members note the content of the report

Purpose of Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to summarise the outcomes of recent internal audit activity 
at both councils for the committee to consider.  The committee is asked to review the 
report and the main issues arising, and seek assurance that action will be/has been 
taken where necessary. 

2 The contact officer for this report is Victoria Hughes, Internal Audit Manager for South 
Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White Horse District Council (VWHDC), 
telephone 01235 422430.

Page 93

Agenda Item 12

mailto:victoria.hughes@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:david.dodds@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Strategic Objectives 

3. Delivery of an effective internal audit function will support the councils in meeting their 
strategic objectives.

Background 

4. Internal audit is an independent assurance function that primarily provides an objective 
opinion on the degree to which the internal control environment supports and promotes 
the achievements of the council’s objectives.  It assists the councils by evaluating the 
adequacy of governance, risk management, controls and use of resources through its 
planned audit work and recommending improvements where necessary. After each audit 
assignment, internal audit has a duty to report to management its findings on the control 
environment and risk exposure and recommend changes for improvements where 
applicable.  Managers are responsible for considering audit reports and taking the 
appropriate action to address control weaknesses. 

 
5. Assurance ratings given by internal audit indicate the following:

Full assurance: There is a good system of internal control designed to meet the system 
objectives and the controls are being consistently applied. 

Substantial assurance: There is a sound system of internal control designed to meet 
the system objectives and the controls are being applied.

Satisfactory assurance: There is basically a sound system of internal control although 
there are some minor weaknesses and/or there is evidence that the level of non-
compliance may put some minor system objectives at risk.

Limited assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the internal control 
system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the level of non-compliance puts 
some of the system objectives at risk.

Nil assurance: Control is weak leaving the system open to significant error or abuse 
and/or there is significant non-compliance with basic controls.

6. Each recommendation is given one of the following risk ratings:

High Risk: Fundamental control weakness for senior management action

Medium Risk: Other control weakness for local management action

Low Risk: Recommended best practice to improve overall control

2018/2019 Audit Reports

7. As at 14 March 2019, since the last audit and governance committee meeting, the 
following audits and follow up reviews have been completed:

Completed Audits
Full Assurance: 0
Substantial Assurance: 0
Satisfactory Assurance: 2
Limited Assurance: 0
Nil Assurance: 0

Page 94

Agenda Item 12



Assurance 
Rating To

ta
l R

ec
s

H
ig

h 
R

is
k 

N
o.

 A
gr

ee
d

M
ed

iu
m

 R
is

k

N
o.

 A
gr

ee
d

Lo
w

 R
is

k

N
o.

 A
gr

ee
d

Joint
Treasury Management 1819 Satisfactory 3 0 0 3 3 0 0
Council Tax 1819 Satisfactory 4 0 0 2 2 2 2
SODC 
None
VWHDC
None

Follow Up Reviews

Initial 
Assurance 
Given N

o.
 o

f R
ec

s

Im
pl

em
en

te
d

Pa
rt

ly
 

Im
pl

em
en

te
d

N
ot

 
Im

pl
em

en
te

d

O
ng

oi
ng

N
o 

lo
ng

er
 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le

Joint
Data Protection 17/18 Satisfactory 8 0 1 6 1 0
Housing Development 
1819 Full 1 1 0 0 0 0

SODC
None
VWHDC
None

11. Internal audit continues to carry out a six month follow up on all non-financial and non-
key financial audits to establish the implementation status of agreed recommendations.   
All key financial system recommendations are followed up as part of the annual 
assurance cycle.

Overdue Recommendations

12. As discussed at the January 2019 audit and governance committee, the who’s who 
section of the intranet has not been updated, and a date for completion has not been 
confirmed.  Since the recommendations database relies on the who’s who contacts, the 
update and relaunch of the recommendations database for monitoring and reporting 
overdue recommendations has been delayed.  A revised report will be presented to 
committee as soon as full functionality is resumed.  Auditors continue with formal follow 
up work, but the recommendations database will facilitate a more pro-active approach.

Page 95

Agenda Item 12



Financial Implications

13. There are no financial implications attached to this report.

Legal Implications

14. None.

Risks

15.  Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits.

VICTORIA HUGHES
INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGER

 

Page 96

Agenda Item 12



Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of Internal Audit Manager
Author: Victoria Hughes
Telephone: 01235 422430
Textphone: 18001 01235 422510
E-mail: victoria.hughes@southandvale.gov.uk
SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor David Dodds
Tel: 01844 212891
E-mail: david.dodds@southoxon.gov.uk
VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Robert Sharp
Telephone: 07771 760549
E-mail: robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee
DATE: 25 March 2019

Internal audit management report 
quarter four 2018/2019
 
Recommendation

That members note the content of the report.

Purpose of report

1. The purpose of this report is:

 to report on management issues within internal audit;

 to summarise the progress against the 2018/2019 audit plan up to 8 March 
2019; and

 to summarise the priorities for quarter one 2019/2020.

2. The contact officer for this report is Victoria Hughes, Internal Audit Manager for 
South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White Horse District 
Council (VWHDC), telephone 01235 422430.

Page 97

Agenda Item 13

mailto:victoria.hughes@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:david.dodds@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Strategic objectives

3. Delivery of an effective internal audit function will support the councils in meeting 
their strategic objectives.

Background 

4. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) from 1 April 2017 states that 
the head of internal audit should prepare a risk-based audit plan, which should 
outline the assignments to be carried out and the resource requirements to deliver 
the plan, for audit committee approval. The joint committee approved the 
2018/2019 annual internal audit plan on 26 March 2018.

5. The PSIAS also states that the head of internal audit must periodically report on 
performance relative to the plan.  

Management issues

6. As stated in the January 2019 audit and governance committee, a corporate fraud 
has been engaged to perform an independent assessment of the current state of 
the corporate fraud and cyber security risks across SODC and VWHDC.  The 
officer has been engaged for a period of four months, ending 31 March 2019.

7. Two agency auditors have been engaged since 17 January 2019 and 7 February 
2019 for a period of five and six weeks respectively to back-fill the two vacant 
auditor posts.  The agency auditors have been engaged to assist the audit team in 
the completion of the 2018/2019 key financial audits. 

8. Recruitment for the two auditor posts is in progress; however, the auditor 
vacancies will impact the delivery of the 2018/2019 audit plan (see appendix 1).  
The 2019/2020 audit allocation calculation allows for two months to recruit to post 
(April and May 2019).

Progress against the 2018/2019 audit plan

9. As at 14 March 2019, progress against the approved audit plan has been 
calculated for the quarter and year to date and is summarised in appendix 1 
attached.

Performance figures to date are as follows:

Actuals by Quarter

Target YTD
Q1 

18/19
Q2 

18/19
Q3 

18/19
Q4 

18/19
Chargeable
(identifiable client and/or specific 
IA deliverable)

74% 69.5% 78% 76% 80.5% 85%

Non-Chargeable 
(corporate, not IA deliverable) 9% 11.5% 4.5% 9% 7% 7%
Planned Lost
(i.e. leave) 15% 17.5% 16% 13.5% 11% 4%
Unplanned Lost
(i.e. study, sickness) 2% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 4%

Page 98

Agenda Item 13



10. As at 14 March 2019 the status of audit work against the 2018/2019 audit plan is 
as follows:

Planned 

Strategic, operational and financial assurance work known and approved by the 
audit and governance committee.

2018/2019 Planned Complete Draft
In 

progress To commence
Planned 24 9 1 8 3 in Q4

3 carry forward 19/20
Joint 24 9 1 8 3 in Q4

3 carry forward 19/20
SODC 0 0 0 0 0
VWHDC 0 0 0 0 0

Ad-hoc

Unplanned project work based on agreed terms of reference with the audit 
manager (i.e. implementation of new systems) and responsive work issued and 
agreed by the section 151 officer, members or senior management team (i.e. 
investigations).

2018/2019 Requested Complete Draft
In 

progress
To 

commence
Ad-hoc 0 0 0 0 0
Joint 0 0 0 0 0
SODC 0 0 0 0 0
VWHDC 0 0 0 0 0

Follow up 

Work undertaken to ensure that agreed recommendations have been 
implemented.  The number of follow-up audits is a rolling number, all internal audit 
reports are followed up after six months unless the area is subject to an annual 
review.

2018/2019 Requested Complete Draft
In 

progress
To 

commence
Follow up 0 2 0 1 3
Joint 0 2 0 1 3
SODC 0 0 0 0 0
VWHDC 0 0 0 0 0

Page 99

Agenda Item 13



Priorities for 2019/2020 quarter one (April 2019 – June 2019)

11. The priorities for quarter one are to:
 
 Complete 2018/2019 audits in progress at year end.
 Commence 2019/2020 planned audit work.
 Review and update the internal audit charter.

12. Remaining 2018/2019 planned audit work can be reviewed in appendix 2. 

Financial implications

13. There are no financial implications attached to this report.

Legal implications

14. None.

Risk implications

15. Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits.

VICTORIA HUGHES
INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGER

Page 100

Agenda Item 13



PLANNED AUDIT 2018/2019

System Name

As at 8 March 2019

Brown Bins (19) 20

SODC 10.0 7 2 2 0 0 5 5 0

VWHDC 10.0 7 2 2 0 0 5 5 0

Capital Management and Accounting (21) 14

SODC 3.5

VWHDC 3.5

Council Tax (23) 20

SODC 11.0 4 0 0 2 2 2 2 0

VWHDC 11.0 4 0 0 2 2 2 2 0

Creditor Payments (27) 20

SODC 10.0

VWHDC 10.0

Discretionary Grants (20) 16

SODC 12.5 9 0 0 3 3 6 6 0

VWHDC 12.5 9 0 0 3 3 6 6 0

General Ledger (24) 20

SODC 10.5

VWHDC 10.5

Health & Safety (20) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Housing Benefits and CTRS (21) 30

SODC 15.5

VWHDC 15.5

Housing Development (18) 20

SODC 10.0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0

VWHDC 10.0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0

HR Management (16) 20

SODC 7.0

VWHDC 7.0

Insurance (27) 16

SODC 1.0

VWHDC 1.0

Lone Working & Officer Security (23) 14

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

NNDR (23) 20

SODC 10.0 5 0 0 1 1 4 4 0

VWHDC 10.0 5 0 0 1 1 4 4 0

Payroll (28) 36

SODC 18.5

VWHDC 18.5

Petty Cash Procedures (17) 4

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Planning Appeals (15) 20

SODC 11.5 6 0 0 3 3 3 3 0

VWHDC 11.5 6 0 0 3 3 3 3 0

Pro-active Anti-Fraud Review (26) 14

SODC 3.5

VWHDC 3.5

Procurement (27) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Property Management (24) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Risk Management (28) 14

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Street Naming & Numbering (4) 8

SODC 5.5 7 0 0 3 3 4 4 0

VWHDC 5.5 7 0 0 3 3 4 4 0

Sundry Debtors (24) 20

SODC 8.5

VWHDC 8.5

Travel & Subsistence (18) 16

SODC 9.0 8 2 2 3 3 3 3 0

VWHDC 9.0 8 2 2 3 3 3 3 0

Treasury Management (21) 14

SODC 7.0 3 0 0 3 3 0 0 0

VWHDC 7.0 3 0 0 3 3 0 0 0

None

None

Full
Substantial

Satisfactory
Limited

Nil

Full
Substantial

Satisfactory
Limited

Nil

Full
Substantial

Satisfactory
Limited

Nil

VWHDC

SODC

Carry Forward 19/20

Completed

To Commence Q4

Satisfactory

Limited

JOINT

Satisfactory

M
e
d

iu
m

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
dStatus

A
u

d
it

 

A
ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l 
D

a
y
s
 

U
s
e
d

Exception Issues

L
o

w

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

Limited

Completed

N
o

. 
o

f 
R

e
c
sAudit Opinion

T
o

ta
l 
N

o
t 

A
g

re
e
d

Substantial

IA PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS

0

100 0545438

Limited

To Commence Q4

Completed

3888436 329.0

10
4

2
2

Draft Out

In Progress

In Progress

In Progress

Completed

Completed

Completed

Full

Substantial

In Progress

Completed

Satisfactory

APPENDIX 1

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

H
ig

h

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Limited

Satisfactory

In Progress

In Progress

27 27

Completed

Full

Carry Forward 19/20

In Progress

Carry Forward 19/20

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

In Progress

Completed

To Commence Q4

27

19 19

VWHDC PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS 218 164.5

0

SODC PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS 218 164.5

Audit pushed back into 2019/20 audit plan. 

Delayed due to overhaul of processes and 

procedures by management.

Audit pushed back into 2019/20 audit plan. 

Delayed until implementation of new lone working.

Audit pushed back into 2019/20 audit plan. 

Delayed due to overhaul of processes and 

procedures by management.

0

0

4

0

1
1
5
2

50 4 4 19 19 27

50 4

1
1
5
2

Page 101

Agenda Item 13



FOLLOW UP OF AUDITS FROM 2017/2018

System Name Total Days 

Used

Original Audit Opinion Issued Total No. of Recs 

Agreed

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

P
a

rt
ly

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

N
o

t 
Im

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

O
n

g
o

in
g

N
o

 L
o

n
g

e
r 

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

N
e
w

 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s

Training and Development (2nd report) 2016/2017 1 Limited 4 0 0 3 0 1 0

Property Management 2017/2018 0.5 Satisfactory 5 0 0 4 0 1 0

Credit Card Usage 2017/2018 1 Limited 10 2 2 3 3 0 0

Tree Management and Inspections 2017/2018 0.5 Satisfactory 4 3 1 0 0 0 0

Emergency Planning 2017/2018 0.5 Satisfactory 6 1 4 0 1 0 0

Data Protection 2017/2018 1 Satisfactory 8 0 1 6 1 0 0

None

None

FOLLOW UP AUDITS 2018/2019

System Name Total Days 

Used

Original Audit Opinion Issued Total No. of Recs 

Agreed

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

P
a

rt
ly

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

N
o

t 
Im

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

O
n

g
o

in
g

N
o

 L
o

n
g

e
r 

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

N
e
w

 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s

Housing Development 2018/2019 0.5 Full 1 1 0 0 0 0 0

None

None

IA FOLLOW UP DURING 18/19 TOTALS 3.0 10 3 2 10 3 2 0

JOINT FOLLOW UP TOTALS 3.0 10 3 2 10 3 2 0

SODC FOLLOW UP TOTALS 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

VWHDC FOLLOW UP TOTALS 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

SODC

JOINT

SODC

VWHDC

VWHDC

P
age 102

A
genda Item

 13



UNPLANNED WORK 2018/2019

CONSULTANCY

System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By

Post room checks Completed N/A 7 Random check following 2017/2018 information

Research following councillor query N/A N/A 1 Head of Corporate Services

Assistance with corporate services project across multiple service teams Completed N/A 32.5 Head of Corporate Services

CONTINGENCY

System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT

System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

AD-HOC ADVICE 

System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By

General audit advice to service teams (incl chasing for information) N/A N/A 0 N/A

General audit advice to service teams (incl chasing for information) N/A N/A 11 N/A

General audit advice to service teams (incl chasing for information) N/A N/A 11 N/A

JOINT

SODC

VWHDC

VWHDC

SODC

JOINT

VWHDC

JOINT

SODC

JOINT

VWHDC

SODC

P
age 103

A
genda Item

 13



PLANNED AUDITS

PRIORITY
JOINT 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4

Brown Bins 19
Capital Mgt & Accounting 21
Council Tax 23
Creditor Payments 27
Discretionary Grants 20
General Ledger 24
Health & Safety 20

Housing Benefits & Council Tax Reduction 21

Housing Development 18

HR Management 16

Insurance 27

Lone Working and Officer Security 23

NNDR 23

Payroll 28

Petty Cash Procedures 17

Planning Appeals 15

Pro-active Anti-Fraud Review 26

Procurement 27

Property Management 24

Risk Management 28

Street Naming & Numbering 4

Sundry Debtors 24

Travel & Subsistence 18

Treasury Management 21

SODC

None

VWHDC

None

FOLLOW UP AUDITS

PRIORITY
JOINT 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4
Training and Development 1516 (follow up of 2nd report)
Property Management 1718
Credit Card Usage 1718
Budgetary Control 1718
Emergency Planning 1718
Tree Management and Inspections 1718
Data Protection 1718
Travel & Subsistence 1819
Housing Development 1819
SODC
None
VWHDC
None

UNPLANNED AUDITS

PRIORITY
JOINT 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4
None
SODC
None
VWHDC
None

Key
Projected Start Date
In Progress
Draft Issued
Complete
No longer applicable/ revised arrangements
Deferred until 2019/2020
Confidential - tbc

APPENDIX 2

August September

June

December

February

MarchDecember January February

J
A

G
C

J
A

G
C

March

J
A

G
C

January

AUDIT PLAN SCHEDULE 2018/2019 (As at 8 March 2019)

J
A

G
C

September

February March

October

J
A

G
C

J
A

G
C

J
A

G
C

J
A

G
C

December

January

J
A

G
C

April May June July

November

November

November

April

J
A

G
C

J
A

G
C

 

AugustApril May July

May June

J
A

G
C

OctoberJuly

August OctoberSeptember

P
age 104

A
genda Item

 13



Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of Internal Audit Manager
Author: Victoria Hughes
Telephone: 01235 422430
Textphone: 18001 01235 422510
E-mail: victoria.hughes@southandvale.gov.uk
SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor David Dodds
Tel: 01844 212891
E-mail: david.dodds@southoxon.gov.uk
VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Robert Sharp
Telephone: 07771 760549
E-mail: robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee
DATE: 25 March 2019

Internal audit annual plan 2019/2020
Recommendation

That members approve the internal audit annual plan 2019/2020

Purpose of Report

1. The purpose of this report is:

 to explain the process for setting the internal audit plan and for calculating 
the resources available; and

 to set out the proposed internal audit annual plan for 2019/2020.

2. The contact officer for this report is Victoria Hughes, Internal Audit Manager for 
South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White Horse District 
Council (VWHDC), telephone 01235 422430.

Page 105

Agenda Item 14

mailto:victoria.hughes@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:david.dodds@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Strategic Objectives

3. Delivery of an effective internal audit function will support the councils in meeting 
their strategic objectives.

Background 

4. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) from 1 April 2017 states that 
the head of internal audit should prepare a risk-based audit plan, which should 
outline the assignments to be carried out and the resource requirements to deliver 
the plan, for audit committee approval.

5. The PSIAS also states that the audit committee should approve the annual 
internal audit plan and monitor progress against the plan.  

Audit Allocation

6. The resources available to deliver the internal audit annual plan 2019/2020 are 
arrived at by starting with the number of days available for all internal audit posts 
within the team.  This is then reduced by the estimated numbers of days lost 
through annual leave, bank holidays (planned) and sickness absence 
(unplanned).  Allowance has been made within the available time for the two 
auditor vacancies, following the internal promotion of two auditors in January 
2019.  The remaining days available are then allocated between the various 
elements of work which are expected to be carried out in the year in order to 
deliver an effective internal audit service.  

7. The calculation of days available and the allocation of days between different 
categories of work is attached as appendix 1.  The different categories of work 
are classed as either chargeable or non-chargeable.  Chargeable means the work 
has an identifiable client or is directly linked to the delivery of internal audit 
services.  Non-chargeable means any other work which is not directly linked to the 
delivery of internal audit services (for example: admin, corporate responsibilities, 
training, staff briefings).

8. The calculation of days for next year is lower than the previous year as it assumes 
a vacancy of two months for the two vacant auditor posts.  An explanation of the 
individual variances against the previous year allocated days is provided after the 
calculation in appendix 1.

Schedule of Auditable Activity (SAA)

9. The SAA attached as appendix 2 lists every possible audit area at both or either 
South Oxfordshire District Council and the Vale of White Horse District Councils.  
Each audit has been rated by the internal audit manager and critically reviewed by 
the head of finance (section 151 officer) on a number of key factors to give a 
priority score, and this assists in the assessment of what should be placed in the 
annual audit plan.  Although scoring is subjective and no two people would 
score alike the process attempts to introduce a degree of objectivity into the 
assessment process.  The key at the bottom of the spreadsheet explains the 
scoring and provides risk definitions.  

Page 106

Agenda Item 14



10. The SAA is only one contributing factor to determining the annual audit plan, as 
external audit, the section 151 officer, internal audit, external risk factors, and 
senior management will also make an assessment on the level of risk exposure 
and audit coverage across the council.  In addition, service managers may request 
that a function within their area of responsibility is reviewed as part of the audit 
plan.

Internal Audit Annual Plan 2019/2020

11. The internal audit annual plan is designed and constructed in such a way to 
enable the internal audit manager to form an opinion on the adequacy of each 
council’s control environment.  This opinion forms an important independent view 
of each council’s operations that feeds into and supports each council’s annual 
governance statement.  

12. The proposed internal audit plan 2019/2020 is attached as appendix 3.  Any 
amendments to the annual plan throughout the year will be submitted to the 
committee for approval.

13. The plan is based on the schedule of auditable activity and external and internal 
audit’s own assessment on levels of risk exposure and coverage of auditable 
areas in recent years.  These audits will be scheduled and completed throughout 
the year.  Any changes to the work programme through the year will be reported 
to committee.

14. It should be noted that not all aspects within a specific area are necessarily 
examined at each audit.  Actual coverage is decided at the time of the audit in 
consultation with heads of service and service managers.  This ensures that 
current issues together with recent coverage by internal audit or external bodies 
determine the scope of the work.  

Financial Implications

15. The audit plan can be delivered from within the approved 2019/2020 budget, 
therefore there are no financial implications attached to this report.

Legal Implications

16. None

Risk Implications

17. Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits.

VICTORIA HUGHES
INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGER

Page 107

Agenda Item 14



Internal Audit Allocation 2019/2020      APPENDIX 1

DESCRIPTION
(Analysis of Description Overleaf)

DAYS 
2019/20

DAYS 
2018/19 VARIANCE

Notes
(Overleaf)

Total Days Available for Internal Audit Team 953 997 (44)
52x5x1 - Auditor x 1 FTE (3 FTE in 18/19) 260 737 (477)
52x5x2x10/12 - Auditor x2 FTE (with 2 month vacancy) 433 0 433
52x5x1 - Audit Manager x1FTE 260 260 -

1

Total Lost Days for Internal Audit Team 151 175 (24)
Annual Leave Entitlement (planned) 95 115 (20)
Bank Holiday and Christmas Closure (planned) 36 40 (4)
Sick Leave (unplanned) 20 20 -

2

Total Non-Chargeable Days for Internal Audit Team 82 86 (4)
Training and Development 12 12 -
Planned Study 20 27 (7)
Admin/Corporate Issues 40 35 5
Corporate/Team Meetings 10 12 (2)

3

Total Chargeable Days for Internal Audit Team 720 736 (16)
Audit Management 100 110 (10) 4
Ad hoc Audit Advice (4 days per service area) 32 32 - 5
Consultancy/System Development (4 days per service area) 32 32 - 6
Contingency (Investigations) (6 days per service area) 48 48 - 7
Audit Follow Up 2017/2018 and 2018/2019 8 12 (4) 8
Audit Follow Up Key Financials 2019/2020 10 10 - 8
Audit Follow Up 2019/2020 10 10 - 8
Town and Parish Councils 2018/2019 8 26 (18) 9
5 Councils Partnership 2019/2020 20 20 - 10
Audit Plan 2019/2020 452 436 16 11

Total Lost + Non-Chargeable + Chargeable Days 953 997 (44)

Proportion of Chargeable Days 76% 74% 2%
Proportion of Non-Chargeable Days 9% 9% -
Proportion of Lost Days 16% 18% (2%)

 

Page 108

Agenda Item 14



Analysis of description
Lost days
 Annual leave entitlement 
 Bank holiday and Christmas closure 
 Sick leave

Training and development
 In-house corporate training (IT, new systems, HR training programme)
 External role related training (management, fraud, audit)
 Study leave for professional qualifications or other role specific training

Administration and corporate issues
 Appraisals
 Progress and 1-2-1 meetings
 Filing
 Timekeeping (timesheets, time allocation, individual work plans)
 Staff briefings
 E-mails/correspondence
 Recruitment

Team meetings
 Internal audit, finance managers, service managers, statutory officers, portfolio

Audit management
 Preparation and attendance at committee
 Revision of audit procedures
 Quality assurance
 Liaising with external audit
 Raising the profile of internal audit
 Attendance at corporate internal and external networking meetings
 Internal audit presence on the website and intranet at both sites
 Preparation and monitoring of the audit plan
 Budgetary control
 Delivery of training
 Performance management
 Recommendations database (maintenance and non-audit specific work)
 Corporate fraud

Ad-hoc audit advice
 Informal responsive advice to queries from staff members

Consultancy/system development
 Formal project work based on agreed terms of reference (i.e. project member for 

implementation of new systems, system mapping, delivery of training to members and 
staff)

Contingency/investigations
 Responsive work issued and agreed by the S151 officer, audit and corporate 

governance committees, members or management team

Town and parish councils
 Provision of internal audit services to town and parish councils

5 Councils Partnership
 Transition to new systems for finance, payroll and IT Page 109

Agenda Item 14



Notes and explanations for variances against previous year

1. Total Days Available for Internal Audit Team down 44 from 997 to 953
Since January 2019 there have been two auditor vacancies.  The calculation of available 
auditor days allows for two months in 2019/20 to recruit to post.

2.  Total Lost Days for Internal Audit Team down 24 days from 175 to 151
 Less 20 days – annual leave.  The calculation estimates the two new auditors will 

have 23 days’ entitlement, pro-rated for 10 months.  In 2019/20 there are no long 
serving staff with additional annual leave entitlement.

 Less 4 days - bank holidays and Christmas. There are 11 days each rather than 
10, but the allowance for two auditor vacancies in April and May reduce the total 
bank holiday days by an additional eight days.

 No change to the number of sick days – each year the sick leave calculation 
estimates 5 days per person. 

3. Total Non-Chargeable Days for Internal Audit Team down 4 days from 86 to 82
 Less 7 days – planned study.  Allocation of 5 days per auditor, allowing for training 

of new staff.
 Plus 5 days – admin/corporate issues increase to allow for additional recruitment 

activity.  
 Less 2 days – corporate/team meetings decrease from 12 to 10 days to bring in 

line with the average number of days used over the last three years.

Total Chargeable Days for Internal Audit Team down 16 days from 736 to 720 but 
individual allocated areas have changed as follows:
4. Less 10 days’ audit management to bring in line with the average number of days 

used over the last three years.  
5. No change to the number of ad hoc advice days - 4 days per service area.
6. No change to the number of consultancy days - 4 days per service area. 
7. No change to the number of contingency days - 6 days per service area. 
8. Less 4 days – audit follow up, based on the number of audits in 2017/18 to 2019/20 

requiring follow up work.
9. Less 18 days - town and parish councils. The two town and parish contracts end in 

2018/19; however, allocation of 9 days to allow for the completion of the 2018/19 year 
end audit work. 

10.No change to 5CP days to allow for audit assistance as required. 
11.Plus 16 days - audit plan days is increased due to the additional time created from 

fewer allocated days for audit management and town and parish council work in 
2019/20, as described above.

Page 110

Agenda Item 14



APPENDIX 2

Schedule of Auditable Activity (SAA) 

# SERVICE AREA SERVICE TEAM AUDIT AREA

SODC/

VWHDC/J

OINT

2018/2019 

PRIORITY 

SCORE

SODC

AUDIT 

ALLOCATION 

DAYS

VWHDC AUDIT 

ALLOCATION 

DAYS

LAST 

REVIEWED

REVIEW 

SCORE

SODC 

LAST AUDIT 

RATING

VWHDC LAST 

AUDIT RATING

SODC 

RATING 

SCORE

VWHDC 

RATING 

SCORE

FINANCIAL 

RISK X 2

FRAUD 

RISK 

X 2

REPUTATIONAL 

RISK

LEGAL 

RISK

CORPORATE 

RISK

OFFICER 

REQUEST 

FOR 19/20

2019/2020 

PRIORITY 

SCORE

2019/2020 

AUDIT PLAN

45 Corporate Services
Programmes & 

Assurance
Risk Management Joint 28 7 7 2016/2017 2 Limited Limited 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 0 29 No

1 5CP Capita - HR & Payroll Payroll Joint 28 18 18 2018/2019 0 Limited Limited 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 1 28 Yes

46 Corporate Services
Programmes & 

Assurance
Insurance Joint 27 8 8 2015/2016 3 Limited Limited 3 3 3 2 3 3 3 0 28 No

3 5CP
Capita - Finance & 

Procurement
Procurement Joint 27 10 10 2015/2016 3 Limited Limited 3 3 3 3 2 2 2 0 27 Yes

2 5CP
Capita - Finance & 

Procurement
Creditor Payments Joint 27 10 10 2018/2019 0 Limited Limited 3 3 3 3 3 2 2 1 26 Yes

47 Corporate Services
Customer 

Engagement
Cash Office Joint 24 8 8 2015/2016 3 Limited Limited 3 3 3 3 2 1 2 0 26 No

48 Corporate Services
Programmes & 

Assurance
Business Continuity Joint 23 10 10 2015/2016 3 Limited Limited 3 3 3 2 3 1 3 0 26 No

90 Housing & Environment Technical Services Mobile Home Parks Joint 14 12 12 2012/2013 6 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 3 2 2 1 1 1 25 Yes

4 5CP
Capita - Revenue & 

Benefits
Council Tax Joint 23 10 10 2018/2019 0 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 3 3 3 2 2 1 24 Yes

14 5CP Capita - IT Disaster Recovery Joint 21 10 10 2013/2014 5 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 3 1 3 1 3 0 24 No

52 Corporate Services
Programmes & 

Assurance
Lone Working/Officer Security Joint 23 7 7 2013/2014 5 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 2 1 3 2 3 1 24 Yes

73
Development & 

Regeneration
Property Property Management JOINT 24 10 10 2017/2018 1 Limited Limited 3 3 3 1 3 3 3 0 24 No

5 5CP
Capita - Finance & 

Procurement
General Ledger Joint 24 10 10 2018/2019 0 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 3 3 2 1 3 1 23 Yes

6 5CP
Capita - Finance & 

Procurement
Sundry Debtors Joint 24 10 10 2018/2019 0 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 3 3 2 2 2 1 23 Yes

7 5CP
Capita - Finance & 

Procurement
Travel & Subsistence Joint 18 8 8 2018/2019 0 Limited Limited 3 3 3 3 2 1 2 0 23 No

50 Corporate Services
Programmes & 

Assurance

Projects & Programmes 

Management
Joint 19 10 10 2015/2016 3 Limited Limited 3 3 2 1 3 2 3 0 23 No

95 Housing & Environment
Environmental 

Services
Pest Control SODC 19 5 0 2010/2011 8 Limited Limited 3 3 1 1 3 1 1 0 23 No

100 Housing & Environment
Licensing & 

Community Safety
(VFM from) CCTV Contract Joint 17 10 10 2009/2010 9 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 2 1 2 1 1 0 23 No

130 Planning
Development - 

Applications
Building Control Joint 21 10 10 2016/2017 2 Limited Limited 3 3 2 2 3 2 2 0 23 No

8 5CP
Capita - Finance & 

Procurement

Capital Management & 

Accounting
Joint 21 7 7 2018/2019 0 Limited Limited 3 3 3 2 2 1 2 1 22 Yes

9 5CP
Capita - Revenue & 

Benefits
NNDR Joint 23 10 10 2018/2019 0 Substantial Substantial 1 1 3 3 3 2 2 1 22 Yes

13 5CP
Capita - Finance & 

Procurement

Receipt of Income 

Arrangements
Joint 20 10 10 2015/2016 3 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 3 2 2 1 2 0 22 No

15 5CP Capita - IT ICT Joint 21 10 10 2015/2016 3 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 2 2 3 1 3 0 22 No

17 5CP
Capita - Finance & 

Procurement
Council Fees and Charges Joint 21 10 10 2013/2014 5 Limited Limited 3 3 2 1 2 1 2 0 22 No

27 Community Services Active Communities
Leisure Facilities (previously 

Centres)
Joint 21 15 15 2015/2016 3 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 3 1 3 2 2 0 22 No

111
Legal & Democratic 

Services
Democratic Services

Elections & Elections 

Payments
Joint 20 15 15 2015/2016 3 Limited Satisfactory 2 2 1 2 3 2 3 1 22 Yes

112
Legal & Democratic 

Services
Democratic Services

Anti-Fraud & Corruption 

Policies
Joint 21 8 8 2014/2015 4 Limited Limited 3 3 1 3 2 1 1 0 22 No

131 Planning Development S106 Commuted Sums / CIL Joint 21 6 6 2016/2017 2 Full Limited 0 3 3 2 3 2 2 0 22 No

10 5CP
Capita - Finance & 

Procurement
Treasury Management Joint 21 7 7 2018/2019 0 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 3 2 2 2 2 1 21 Yes

11 5CP
Capita - Revenue & 

Benefits

Housing Benefits & Council 

Tax Reduction Scheme
Joint 21 15 15 2018/2019 0 Full Full 0 0 3 3 3 2 3 1 21 Yes

16 5CP Capita - HR & Payroll Recruitment & Selection Joint 19 10 10 2015/2016 3 Limited Limited 3 3 1 2 2 2 2 0 21 No

28 Community Services
Arts & Community 

Centres
Cornerstone SODC 19 10 0 2016/2017 2 Limited N/A 3 0 3 1 3 1 3 1 21 Yes

43 Corporate Audits N/A Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review Joint 26 7 7 2018/2019 0 Substantial Substantial 1 1 3 3 3 1 2 1 21 Yes

49 Corporate Services IT
Information Security (incl. 

cyber security)
Joint - 10 10 Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 3 3 3 2 3 1 21 Yes

53 Corporate Services
Programmes & 

Assurance
Health & Safety Joint 20 10 10 2016/2017 2 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 2 1 3 3 2 1 21 Yes

59 Corporate Services
Customer 

Engagement
Information Governance Joint 17 10 10 2012/2013 5 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 1 1 3 2 3 0 21 No

63 Corporate Services IT
Geographical Information 

Systems (GIS)/Data Capture
Joint 17 10 10 2008/2009 10 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 0 21 No

74
Development & 

Regeneration
Property

Estates & Facilities 

Management
JOINT 19 10 10 2016/2017 2 Limited Limited 3 3 2 2 2 1 2 0 21 No

119 Partnership & Insight
Community 

Partnership

Partnership Performance 

Monitoring
Joint 18 10 10 2015/2016 3 Limited Limited 3 3 2 1 3 1 2 0 21 No

12 5CP
Capita - Finance & 

Procurement
Credit Card Usage Joint 19 4 4 2017/2018 1 Limited Limited 3 3 2 3 1 1 1 0 20 No

24 5CP
Capita - Revenue & 

Benefits

Council Tax Reduction 

Scheme Fraud
Joint 19 5 5 2012/2013 6 Full Full 0 0 3 2 2 1 1 0 20 No

51 Corporate Services
Customer 

Engagement
Data Protection / GDPR Joint 23 7 7 2017/2018 1 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 2 1 3 3 2 1 20 Yes

56 Corporate Services
Customer 

Engagement
Freedom of Information Joint 17 6 6 2012/2013 6 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 1 1 3 2 1 0 20 No

89 Housing & Environment
Environmental 

Services
Brown Bins Joint 19 10 10 2018/2019 0 Limited Limited 3 3 3 1 3 1 2 0 20 No

132 Planning Development - Large Planning Appeals Joint 15 10 10 2018/2019 0 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 3 1 3 3 2 0 20 No

133 Planning
Development (Large & 

Applications)

Development Management 

(Planning Applications)
Joint 18 10 10 2015/2016 3 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 1 2 3 1 2 1 20 Yes

19 5CP

Capita - Customer 

Services, Licensing & 

Land Charges

Land Charges Joint 18 10 10 2014/2015 4 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 2 1 3 1 1 0 19 No

61 Corporate Services
Programmes & 

Assurance
Equalities and Diversity Joint 17 8 8 2011/2012 7 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 1 1 2 1 1 0 19 No

91 Housing & Environment
Licensing & 

Community Safety
Licensing Joint 19 10 10 2017/2018 1 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 2 2 3 2 1 0 19 No

92 Housing & Environment Technical Services Car Parks Joint 20 9 9 2017/2018 1 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 3 2 2 1 1 0 19 No

RISK SCORING

P
age 111

A
genda Item

 14



# SERVICE AREA SERVICE TEAM AUDIT AREA

SODC/

VWHDC/J

OINT

2018/2019 

PRIORITY 

SCORE

SODC

AUDIT 

ALLOCATION 

DAYS

VWHDC AUDIT 

ALLOCATION 

DAYS

LAST 

REVIEWED

REVIEW 

SCORE

SODC 

LAST AUDIT 

RATING

VWHDC LAST 

AUDIT RATING

SODC 

RATING 

SCORE

VWHDC 

RATING 

SCORE

FINANCIAL 

RISK X 2

FRAUD 

RISK 

X 2

REPUTATIONAL 

RISK

LEGAL 

RISK

CORPORATE 

RISK

OFFICER 

REQUEST 

FOR 19/20

2019/2020 

PRIORITY 

SCORE

2019/2020 

AUDIT PLAN

98 Housing & Environment
Environmental 

Services
Food & Safety Joint 15 10 10 2013/2014 5 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 1 1 3 2 1 0 19 No

134 Planning Planning Policy
Neighbourhood Planning 

Grants
Joint 23 5 5 2015/2016 3 Limited Limited 3 3 2 1 2 1 1 0 19 No

44 Corporate Audits N/A Stationery System Joint 17 6 6 2011/2012 7 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 0 18 No

54 Corporate Services
Programmes & 

Assurance
Emergency Planning Joint 20 5 5 2017/2018 1 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 2 1 3 1 3 0 18 No

84 Finance Revenues & Benefits Revenues & Benefits Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 3 3 2 2 2 0 18 No
85 Finance Strategic Finance Community Loans Scheme SODC 17 4 0 2013/2014 5 Full Full 0 0 2 2 2 1 2 0 18 No
88 Finance Strategic Finance Contract Management Joint 17 10 10 2014/2015 4 Full Full 0 0 2 1 3 2 3 0 18 No
99 Housing & Environment Housing Needs Temporary Accommodation Joint 17 0 12 2014/2015 4 Satisfactory Limited 2 3 1 1 3 1 1 0 18 No

103 Housing & Environment
Environmental 

Services
Stray Dogs Contract Joint 17 8 8 2010/2011 8 N/A Satisfactory 0 2 1 1 2 1 1 0 18 No

18 5CP
Capita - Finance & 

Procurement
Internal Recharges Joint 18 8 8 2017/2018 1 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 3 1 1 1 2 0 17 No

22 5CP Capita - HR & Payroll Training & Development Joint 16 6 6 2016/2017 2 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 2 1 2 1 2 0 17 No

55 Corporate Services
Programmes & 

Assurance
Performance Management Joint 16 8 8 2016/2017 2 Limited Limited 3 3 1 1 2 1 1 1 17 Yes

94 Housing & Environment Technical Services
Tree Management and 

Inspections
Joint 15 10 10 2017/2018 1 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 2 1 3 2 1 0 17 No

96 Housing & Environment
Environmental 

Services
Environmental Protection Joint 16 10 10 2016/2017 2 Limited Satisfactory 3 2 1 1 3 2 1 0 17 No

97 Housing & Environment
Licensing & 

Community Safety

Safeguarding Children, Young 

People and Vulnerable Adults
Joint 16 5 5 2016/2017 2 Substantial Substantial 1 1 2 1 3 3 1 0 17 No

115
Legal & Democratic 

Services
Legal Services RIPA Joint 18 5 5 2013/2014 5 Full Full 0 0 2 1 3 1 2 0 17 No

20 5CP
Capita - Finance & 

Procurement
Budgetary Control Joint 13 5 5 2017/2018 1 Full Full 0 0 3 1 3 1 2 1 16 Yes

25 5CP
Capita - Finance & 

Procurement
Bank Contract & Arrangements Joint 13 4 4 2014/2015 4 Full Full 0 0 2 1 1 2 3 0 16 No

29 Community Services
Arts & Community 

Centres
The Beacon VWHDC 15 0 11 2017/2018 1 N/A Satisfactory 0 2 3 1 3 1 1 0 16 No

58 Corporate Services
Customer 

Engagement

Consultation (Public & Staff) & 

Community Engagement
Joint 12 5 5 2015/2016 3 Substantial Substantial 1 1 1 1 3 1 3 0 16 No

93 Housing & Environment Housing Needs Disabled Facility Grants Joint - 8 8 Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 3 2 2 1 2 1 16 Yes
104 Housing & Environment Housing Needs Housing Allocations Joint 17 10 10 2012/2013 6 Full Full 0 0 1 1 3 2 1 0 16 No

114
Legal & Democratic 

Services
Democratic Services Corporate Governance Joint 13 10 10 2014/2015 4 Full Full 0 0 1 2 3 1 2 0 16 No

21 5CP
Capita - Finance & 

Procurement
Petty Cash Procedures Joint 17 2 2 2014/2015 0 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 0 15 No

30 Community Services
Community 

Enablement
Community Grants Joint 20 4 4 2018/2019 0 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 2 1 3 1 1 0 15 No

57 Corporate Services
Customer 

Engagement

Comments & Complaints 

Process
Joint 14 7 7 2016/2017 2 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 1 1 3 1 1 0 15 No

75
Development & 

Regeneration

Infrastructure & 

Development
S106/CIL spending JOINT - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 3 1 3 2 2 0 15 No

113
Legal & Democratic 

Services
Democratic Services Gifts and Hospitality Joint 14 5 5 2016/2017 2 Substantial Substantial 1 1 1 2 3 1 1 0 15 No

23 5CP Capita - HR & Payroll HR Management Joint 16 10 10 2015/2016 0 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 1 1 2 2 2 0 14 No
34 Community Services Active Communities Seasonal Leisure Activities Joint 15 6 6 2012/2013 6 Full Full 0 0 1 1 2 1 1 0 14 No

101 Housing & Environment
Environmental 

Services

Waste Management and 

Recycling
Joint 15 10 10 2015/2016 3 Substantial Substantial 1 1 1 1 3 1 1 0 14 No

117 Partnership & Insight Didcot Garden Town Didcot Garden Town Delivery SODC 12 10 0 Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 3 1 3 1 2 0 14 No

26 5CP
Capita - Finance & 

Procurement
Petty Cash Spot Checks Joint 12 2 2 2017/2018 1 Full Full 0 0 2 2 1 1 1 0 12 No

60 Corporate Services IT Street Naming & Numbering Joint 4 4 4 2018/2019 0 Satisfactory Satisfactory 2 2 1 1 2 1 1 0 12 No
62 Corporate Services Strategic HR Recruitment & Selection Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 2 2 2 2 0 12 No

76
Development & 

Regeneration

Economic 

Development
Leader Project Assurance SODC 8 10 0 2017/2018 1 Full N/A 0 0 3 1 1 1 1 0 12 No

102 Housing & Environment Technical Services Grounds & Parks Maintenance Joint 9 9 9 2017/2018 1 Full Full 0 0 2 1 3 1 1 0 12 No

31 Community Services
Arts & Community 

Centres
Community Centres Joint 6 4 4 Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 2 1 3 1 1 0 11 No

32 Community Services
Community 

Enablement
Assets of Community Value Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 3 3 1 0 11 No

64 Corporate Services Strategic HR Training & Development Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 2 1 2 1 2 0 11 No

77
Development & 

Regeneration

Infrastructure & 

Development

Affordable Housing 

Development 
JOINT 18 10 10 2018/2019 0 Full Full 1 1 1 1 3 1 1 0 11 No

78
Development & 

Regeneration

Infrastructure & 

Development
Infrastructure / S106 spending JOINT - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 3 2 2 0 11 No

65 Corporate Services
Customer 

Engagement

EIR (Environmental 

Information Regulations)
Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 3 2 1 0 10 No

66 Corporate Services IT IT Operations Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 2 1 3 0 10 No
67 Corporate Services Strategic HR HR Policy Framework Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 2 2 2 0 10 No

79
Development & 

Regeneration

Economic 

Development
Economic Development JOINT - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 2 1 2 1 1 0 10 No

118 Partnership & Insight Strategic Partnership
Local enterprise partnership 

(LEP) 
Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 2 1 2 1 1 0 10 No

135 Planning Planning Policy Local Plan Joint 6 8 8 Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 2 1 3 0 10 No

68 Corporate Services
Customer 

Engagement
Communications Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 2 2 1 0 9 No

69 Corporate Services
Customer 

Engagement
Customer Services Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 2 1 2 0 9 No

70 Corporate Services IT IT Infrastructure Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 1 1 3 0 9 No

80
Development & 

Regeneration
Property Moorings JOINT - 5 5 Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 2 1 1 1 9 Yes

105 Housing & Environment
Licensing & 

Community Safety
Community Safety Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 3 1 1 0 9 No

120 Partnership & Insight Insight & Policy External Funding Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 2 1 1 1 1 0 9 No
136 Planning Business Footpaths Joint 5 4 4 Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 2 2 1 0 9 No

33 Community Services
Arts & Community 

Centres
Arts Development Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No

35 Community Services
Community 

Enablement
SODC online lottery SODC 4 5 0 Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No

36 Community Services Active Communities Leisure Development Joint - 10 10 Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 8 Yes

81
Development & 

Regeneration

Economic 

Development
Science Vale Brand VWHDC - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No

P
age 112

A
genda Item

 14



# SERVICE AREA SERVICE TEAM AUDIT AREA

SODC/

VWHDC/J

OINT

2018/2019 

PRIORITY 

SCORE

SODC

AUDIT 

ALLOCATION 

DAYS

VWHDC AUDIT 

ALLOCATION 

DAYS

LAST 

REVIEWED

REVIEW 

SCORE

SODC 

LAST AUDIT 

RATING

VWHDC LAST 

AUDIT RATING

SODC 

RATING 

SCORE

VWHDC 

RATING 

SCORE

FINANCIAL 

RISK X 2

FRAUD 

RISK 

X 2

REPUTATIONAL 

RISK

LEGAL 

RISK

CORPORATE 

RISK

OFFICER 

REQUEST 

FOR 19/20

2019/2020 

PRIORITY 

SCORE

2019/2020 

AUDIT PLAN

82
Development & 

Regeneration

Economic 

Development
Market Towns JOINT - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No

83
Development & 

Regeneration

Infrastructure & 

Development
Berinsfield Regeneration SODC - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No

106 Housing & Environment Housing Needs
Private Housing (Licensing 

HMO)
Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No

107 Housing & Environment Technical Services
Engineering Services 

(sewerage, flooding, drainage)
Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No

108 Housing & Environment Technical Services Toilets Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No
109 Housing & Environment Technical Services Cemeteries Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No

116
Legal & Democratic 

Services
Legal Services Legal Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No

121 Partnership & Insight Strategic Partnership OxCam Corridor Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No
122 Partnership & Insight Strategic Partnership Joint spatial plan Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No
123 Partnership & Insight Strategic Partnership Enterprise zones Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No
137 Planning Business Ecology Joint 5 4 4 Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 2 1 1 0 8 No
37 Community Services Active Communities Sports Participation Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No
38 Community Services Active Communities Parks Promotion Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No

39 Community Services
Community 

Enablement
Voluntary Sector Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No

40 Community Services
Community 

Enablement
Town & Parish Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No

41 Community Services
Community 

Enablement
Community partnerships Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No

42 Community Services
Community 

Enablement
Young People Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No

71 Corporate Services
Customer 

Engagement
Executive & Business Support Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No

72 Corporate Services Strategic HR DBS Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No
86 Finance Strategic Finance Strategic Finance Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No
87 Finance Strategic Finance Financial Management Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No

110 Housing & Environment Technical Services Public Realm Joint 4 7 7 Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No
124 Partnership & Insight Insight & Policy Insight Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No
125 Partnership & Insight Insight & Policy Policy Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No
126 Partnership & Insight Strategic Partnership Central Government Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No
127 Partnership & Insight Strategic Partnership Oxfordshire Councils Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No
128 Partnership & Insight Strategic Partnership 5C Partnerships Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No
129 Partnership & Insight Strategic Partnership Influence Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No
138 Planning Business Registration Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No
139 Planning Business Business Support Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No
140 Planning Business Trees Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No
141 Planning Planning Policy Conservation Area Appraisals Joint - - - Not audited 0 N/A N/A 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 7 No

P
age 113

A
genda Item

 14



Schedule of Auditable Activity (SAA) Notes

Key: Description

Last priority rating Overall priority score from the prior year (i.e. 2018/2019 priority score)
Audit allocation days Total budgeted days, split by SODC and VWHDC from the last audit
Last reviewed Audit year last reviewed
Review score Number of audit years since last review (0 if not audited)
Last audit rating Audit rating of last audit

Rating score

Score based on the overall assurance rating from last audit (i.e. higher score for lower assurance rating):
Full: 0
Substantial: 1
Satisfactory: 2
Limited: 3
Nil: 4

Financial risk score (x2)* Any risk which has a potential adverse financial consequence.

Fraud risk score (x2)* The risk of a person/persons using deception to make a personal gain which has an impact on the organisation.

Reputational risk score Risk of negative perception by the public and stakeholders.

Legal risk score Risk of non-compliance to laws and regulations.  Any financial consequence of such a breach is scored in the financial risk element.

Corporate risk score Risk of operational disruption resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from external events.

Officer request
Review requested by Head of Service for 2019/2020 audit plan. 
Requested: 1 
Not requested: 0

Priority score Sum of all the risk scores

Key financial audit Key financial audit, reviewed annually

Planned audit for 2019/2020

* Financial and fraud risk has been weighted (x2), due to higher level of impact if risk materialised.

Risk Definitions & Scoring

Low Risk: 1 Consequences will not be severe and any associated losses relatively small.

Medium risk: 2 Significant impact to council operations and services.

High risk: 3 Major impact to council operations and services.

APPENDIX 2

P
age 114

A
genda Item

 14



Internal Audit Plan 2019/2020 APPENDIX 3

No. Joint
Priority 
Score

SODC
Days

VWHDC
Days

1 Payroll 28 18 18
2 Procurement 27 10 10
3 Creditor Payments 26 10 10
4 Mobile Home Parks 25 12 12
5 Council Tax 24 10 10
6 Lone Working / Officer Security 24 7 7
7 General Ledger 23 10 10
8 Sundry Debtors 23 10 10
9 NNDR 22 10 10

10 Capital Management & Accounting 22 7 7
11 Elections & Election Payments 22 15 15
12 Health & Safety 21 10 10
13 Pro-active Anti-Fraud Review 21 7 7
14 Treasury Management 21 7 7
15 Housing Benefits & Council Tax Reduction Scheme 21 15 15
16 Information Security (including cyber security) 21 10 10
17 Cornerstone 21 10 0
18 Data Protection / GDPR 20 7 7
19 Development Management (Planning Applications) 20 10 10
20 Performance Management 17 8 8
21 Disabled Facility Grants 16 8 8
22 Budgetary Control 16 5 5
23 Moorings 9 5 5
24 Leisure Development 8 10 10

TOTAL DAYS 231 221
25 5 Councils Partnership N/A 10 10
26 Town and Parish Council Client Work N/A 8 0

TOTAL DAYS 18 10

Potential Audits for 2019/2020
Depending on the outcome of recruitment activity for the two vacant auditor posts, the 
following audits will be performed if there are available audit days:

No. Joint
Priority 
Score

SODC
Days

VWHDC
Days

27 Land Charges 19 10 10
28 Assets of Community Value 11 7 7
29 Engineering Services (sewerage, flooding, drainage) 8 7 7

TOTAL DAYS 24 24

Key:
Audits in bold text are key financial audits, performed every year.

Priority Rating:
Audits are rated within the schedule of auditable activity taking into consideration the following factors:

 The date of the last review;
 The last assurance rating the audit area was given;
 Risk scores for the level of exposure to financial, fraud, reputational, legal and corporate risk; and
 Officer requests for a review.

This generates a priority score which, together with external and internal audit and the section 151 officer’s opinion on key risk areas, 
drives which audits are placed in the annual audit plan.

Page 115

Agenda Item 14



Audit and governance
work programme

containing Audit and Governance Committee work to 
be undertaken 

1 APRIL 2019 - 30 MARCH 2020

      

The audit and governance work programme belongs to the councils’ Joint Audit and Governance Committee and sets out a schedule of work 
for the period shown above.  It is a rolling plan, subject to change at each Committee meeting; however, the councils may allocate additional 
work.  

Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes
Internal audit activity 
report – first quarter 
2019/20

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 29 
July 2019

Victoria Hughes 
Email: 
victoria.hughes@
southandvale.gov
.uk

The council audits its 
services through the 
internal audit service in 
line with the approved 
internal audit plan 
2019/20

To summarise the 
outcomes of recent 
internal audit activity 
for the committee to 
consider.  The 
committee is asked to 
review the report and 
main issues arising, 
and seek assurance 
that action has been or 
will be taken where 
necessary.

This is a recurring 
agenda item, and is 
updated at each 
meeting.  

P
age 116

A
genda Item

 15

mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk


Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes

South and Vale Audit and Governance Work Programme
2

Internal audit 
management report - 
first quarter 2019/20

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 29 
July 2019

Victoria Hughes 
Email: 
victoria.hughes@
southandvale.gov
.uk

The committee monitors 
the effectiveness of 
internal audit each 
quarter against the 
approved audit plan

To report on 
management issues, 
summarise the first 
quarter progress of the 
internal audit team 
against the 2019/209 
audit plan, and 
summarise the 
priorities and planned 
audit work for quarter 
three.

This is a recurring 
agenda item, and is 
updated at each 
meeting.  

Internal audit annual 
report 2018/19

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 29 
July 2019

Victoria Hughes 
Email: 
victoria.hughes@
southandvale.gov
.uk

Each year the council’s 
internal audit team 
produces an annual 
report to review 
activities over the 
previous year

To review internal 
audit activity during 
2018/19

External auditor's 
annual governance 
reports 2018/19

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 29 
July 2019

William Jacobs, 
Email: 
william.jacobs@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The external auditor 
publishes an annual 
governance report on 
the councils’ activities.

To consider the 
external auditor's 
annual governance 
reports 2018/19

Statements of 
accounts 2018/19

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 29 
July 2019

Richard 
Spraggett, Email: 
richard.spraggett
@southandvale.g
ov.uk

The councils must 
produce statements of 
accounts each year.

To approve the 
statements of accounts 
2018/19

P
age 117

A
genda Item

 15

mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk


Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes

South and Vale Audit and Governance Work Programme
3

Annual governance 
statements 2018/19

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 29 
July 2019

Ron Schrieber, 
Email: 
ron.schrieber@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The councils are 
required to publish 
annual governance 
statements

To approve the annual 
governance 
statements 2018/19

Letters of 
representation to the 
council's external 
auditor

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 29 
July 2019

William Jacobs, 
Email: 
william.jacobs@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The committee's co-
chairmen and the 
section 151 officer are 
required to sign a 'letter 
of representation' to the 
external auditor, as part 
of the process in 
completing the 
statement of accounts.

To consider and agree 
the letters of 
representation

Internal audit charter Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 29 
July 2019

Victoria Hughes, 
Email: 
victoria.hughes@
southandvale.gov
.uk

The committee is 
responsible for approval 
of the internal audit 
charter which requires 
periodic review.

To review and approve 
the internal audit 
charter.

Risk Management 
Update

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 29 
July 2019

Yvonne Cutler-
Greaves, Email: 
Yvonne.cutler-
greaves@southa
ndvale.gov.uk

The committee agreed 
to receive regular 
progress reports on the 
implementation of the 
risk management 
framework

To review and 
comment on progress

P
age 118

A
genda Item

 15

mailto:ron.schrieber@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:ron.schrieber@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:ron.schrieber@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Yvonne.cutler-greaves@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Yvonne.cutler-greaves@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Yvonne.cutler-greaves@southandvale.gov.uk


Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes

South and Vale Audit and Governance Work Programme
4

External auditor's 
annual audit letter

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 29 
July 2019

William Jacobs, 
Email: 
william.jacobs@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The external auditor is 
responsible for auditing 
the councils’ business.

To consider the 
external auditor's 
annual audit letter 
2018/19
.
 

Treasury 
management outturn 
2017/18

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 14 
October 2019

Richard 
Spraggett, Email: 
richard.spraggett
@southandvale.g
ov.uk

The committee is 
responsible for the 
scrutiny of the councils’ 
treasury management 
activity.

To consider the 
treasury management 
outturn for 2017/8

External auditor’s 
report on the 
certification of claims 
and returns 2017/18

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 
27January 2020

William Jacobs, 
Email: 
william.jacobs@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The external auditor to 
report on certification 
and other assurance 
work.

To consider the 
external auditor's 
report

External auditor’s 
audit planning 
reports 2019/20

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 27 
January 2020

William Jacobs, 
Email: 
william.jacobs@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The external auditor to 
report on how it intends 
to carry out its 
responsibilities as 
auditor

To consider the 
external auditor's 
report

Treasury 
management mid-
year monitoring 
2019/20

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 
27January 2020

Richard 
Spraggett, Email: 
richard.spraggett
@southandvale.g
ov.uk

The committee is 
responsible for the 
scrutiny of the councils’ 
treasury management 
activity.

To review the councils’ 
treasury management 
activities for the first 
six months of the 
2019/20 financial year.
 P

age 119

A
genda Item

 15

mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk


Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes

South and Vale Audit and Governance Work Programme
5

Treasury 
management 
strategies 2019/20

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 27 
January 2020

Richard 
Spraggett, Email: 
richard.spraggett
@southandvale.g
ov.uk

The committee is 
responsible for the 
scrutiny of the councils’ 
treasury management 
activity and to propose a 
strategies to Councils, 
via Cabinets, for the 
management of this 
function in the 
forthcoming year.

To scrutinise the 
treasury management 
strategies and policies 
and if required, make 
recommendations for 
amendment to 
Cabinets
 

Risk Management 
Update

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 27 
January 2020

Yvonne Cutler-
Greaves, Email: 
Yvonne.cutler-
greaves@southa
ndvale.gov.uk

The committee agreed 
to receive regular 
progress reports on the 
implementation of the 
risk management 
framework

To review and 
comment on progress

Comments and 
complaints 2018/19

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 23 
March 2020

Sally Truman, 
Email: Sally 
Truman@southa
ndvale.gov.uk

The committee is 
responsible for 
monitoring the councils’ 
comments and 
complaints.

To review the 
comments and 
complaints received 
during 2018/19

P
age 120

A
genda Item

 15

mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Yvonne.cutler-greaves@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Yvonne.cutler-greaves@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Yvonne.cutler-greaves@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Truman@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Truman@southandvale.gov.uk


Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes

South and Vale Audit and Governance Work Programme
6

Code of Conduct – 
annual report

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 23 
March 2020

Margaret Reed, 
Email: 
margaret.reed@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The Committee has 
responsibility for having 
an overview of the 
standards of conduct 
framework for 
councillors, any co-
opted members and 
parish councillors.

To review complaints 
received under code of 
conduct.

Internal audit plan 
2019/20

Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 
23March 2020

Victoria Hughes, 
Email: 
victoria.hughes@
southandvale.gov
.uk

The council audits its 
services through the 
internal audit service.

To approve the internal 
audit plan for 2019/20

Review of statement 
of accounting 
policies 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 23 
March 2020

Richard 
Spraggett, Email: 
richard.spraggett
@southandvale.g
ov.uk

To audit and review the 
policies and principles 
used when compiling 
the 2019/20 accounts. 

P
age 121

A
genda Item

 15

mailto:margaret.reed@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:margaret.reed@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:margaret.reed@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk


Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of Acting Deputy Chief Executive – Transformation and Operations
Author: Adrianna Partridge
Telephone: 01235 422485
Textphone: 18001 01235 422510
E-mail: adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Kevin Bulmer
Tel: 07803 005680
E-mail: kevin.bulmer@southoxon.gov.uk
VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Edward Blagrove
Telephone: 07958 700461
E-mail: edward.blagrove @whitehorsedc.gov.uk

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee
DATE: 25 March 2019

Programme Governance Review
 
Recommendation

That members note the content of the report.

Purpose of report

1. The purpose of this report is:

 to update on the programmes and projects governance review, 
commissioned by Cllr Ian White (SODC) and Cllr Simon Howell 
(VWHDC) as joint chairman of the audit and governance committee on 
governance matters relating to historic decision making between 2010 
and 2016; and

 to summarise the findings from the individual programme and project 
governance reviews which have been completed.

Page 122

Agenda Item 16

mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:kevin.bulmer@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


2. The contact officer for this report is Adrianna Partridge, Acting Deputy Chief 
Executive – Transformation and Operations for South Oxfordshire District 
Council (SODC) and Vale of White Horse District Council (VWHDC), telephone 
01235 422485.

Strategic objectives

3. This work is supported by all of the councils’ strategic objectives.

Review framework

4. Due to a number of governance control weaknesses being brought to the 
attention of the joint audit and governance committee, the chairmen 
commissioned the programmes and projects governance review with the 
agreement of Ernst Young (councils’ external auditors) and the full support of 
the chief executive.  The terms of reference for the review are attached as 
appendix 1.  

5. The acting deputy chief executive – transformation and operations is leading the 
review, supported by a dedicated project team.  Group leaders across the 
councils have also been fully briefed.  

6. A programme review steering group has been established, which consists of 
the joint chairmen of the audit and governance committee, the leaders of both 
councils, the chief executive and the acting deputy chief executive – 
transformation and operations.  Progress meetings were held on the 6 
December 2018 and 8 March 2019, following which the chairmen provided an 
updated to the external auditors as agreed.

Programme update and key findings

7. Programmes and projects register
Interviews to assess current and recent activity were held with all heads of 
service (8 in total) and all service managers and relevant project personnel (28 
in total).  A project register has been collated for all programmes and projects 
with a budgetary value of over £10K over the total life of the project, which has 
been verified against the project definition stated within the terms of reference 
and against all capital programme/major expenditure items.  The register 
currently has 162 projects listed across both councils (joint 105, SODC 29 and 
VWHDC 28).  

8. Individual project reviews
Eight projects were selected for examination in detail.  Five individual reviews 
have been completed, and three individual reviews are still in progress at the 
time of drafting this report.  The eight projects and their status are attached as 
confidential appendix 2.  Each individual programme review has five phases:

Step 1 – Timeline documented against supporting evidence by the relevant head 
of service.
Step 2 – Independent review of evidence by the allocated officer within the 
programmes and projects team.
Step 3 – Review queries verified, and summary findings documented by the 
allocated officer.

Page 123

Agenda Item 16



Step 4 – Quality assurance review of the findings by a second officer within the 
programmes and projects team.
Step 5 – Findings presented to the joint audit and governance committee.

9. Programme review findings
At the January joint audit and governance committee, initial findings from the 
reviews in progress at that time were reported.  These findings can now be 
confirmed, and for completeness are re-stated below with some minor 
amendments where relevant (findings 1 – 4 and 9).  In addition, four new 
findings have been confirmed which are documented below (findings 4 – 7). 
The findings indicate significant control weaknesses in a number of areas.  

10. The findings are as follows:
 Finding 1 - Evidence of an over-reliance on Cabinet Briefing, rather than 

Cabinet and Full Council. (3 of 5 projects)
 Finding 2 - A lack of detail and transparency in papers documented for 

members/Cabinet Briefing/Cabinet/Scrutiny to support an update or 
decision.  (4 of 5 projects)

 Finding 3 - A lack of information provision to all members.  (2 of 5 
projects)

 Finding 4 - Poor procedural compliance by officers and members in 
documenting decision making.  (5 of 5 projects)

 New Finding 5 - Poor procedural compliance by officers in procurement 
processes.  (4 of 5 projects)

 New Finding 6 - Poor control measures undertaken by officers. (4 of 5 
projects)

 New Finding 7 - Poor document management to support effective project 
management.  (5 of 5 projects)

 New Finding 8 – A lack of understanding by members of the role and 
delivery of the councils’ scrutiny function.  (2 of 5 projects)

 Finding 9 - Lack of robust induction for officers and elected members, 
most notably a lack of emphasis on the difference in roles and 
accountabilities between officers and members, expected behaviours and 
the requirement for officers to service the council as a whole.  (5 of 5 
projects)

Actions

11. Significant action has already been taken by officers and members to address 
the findings from the programme and projects governance review and ensure 
that appropriate and ongoing changes are made to the councils’ governance 
framework. 

12. Action completed/in progress is as follows:
 Retrospective briefing reports and formal approval has been obtained 

where appropriate, following control weaknesses identified in individual 
project reviews.

 A formal report checking process has been implemented by the councils’ 
strategic management team (SMT), to ensure adequate oversight and 
governance checks are completed by senior management.

 Briefing reports are now submitted to formal Cabinet meetings.

Page 124

Agenda Item 16



 A new corporate project management framework is currently being 
implemented, with a focus on transparency of key decisions by officers 
and members.

 Officers are working on a new procurement framework, which includes 
updated guidance on the councils’ contract procedure rules.

 SMT have recently approved the next 12-18months priorities for the in-
house strategic HR team which includes reviewing the councils’ HR policy 
framework and induction and training provision for officers.

 The councils’ recent organisation restructure created an information 
governance officer/DPO post, which will implement an 
information/document management framework.

 Democratic services are leading on the development of the councillor 
induction programme following the May elections, with a strong focus on 
roles, responsibilities and essential knowledge requirements for 
councillors.  There is also a focus on ongoing member training.

 Relevant member briefings are now being undertaken at an officer and 
member level.

Next steps

13. The programmes and assurance team will complete the three individual 
programme reviews still in progress at the time of drafting this report.  If the 
findings remain consistent with the nine findings documented in section 10 
above, the acting deputy chief executive – transformation and operations will 
confirm this to the programme review steering group.  If the three individual 
reviews identify any new findings, this will be reported to the July joint audit 
and governance committee.  

14. SMT and the joint audit and governance committee chairmen will continue to 
oversee the implementation of the actions identified in section 12 above.  
Progress against the actions will be reported back to the joint audit and 
governance committee at appropriate timescales by the acting deputy chief 
executive – transformation and operations.  The joint audit and governance 
committee chairmen will continue to update and liaise with the external 
auditors as appropriate.

15. The documentation, findings and actions related to this programme 
governance review will be shared with external legal advisors for their 
independent review and ongoing support in ensuring improvements are made 
to the councils’ governance framework. 

Financial implications

16. A budget figure of £30K (£15K per council) has been identified and approved 
as part of the 2019/20 budget build to support relevant improvements to the 
governance framework.  The acting deputy chief executive – transformation 
and operations and the chief executive will monitor any financial implications 
arising from the review and will report to the programme review steering group 
and joint audit and governance committee, involving the section 151 officer as 
required.

Page 125

Agenda Item 16



Legal implications

17. A budget figure of £30K (£15K per council) has been identified and approved 
as part of the 2019/20 budget build, to support relevant improvements to the 
governance framework which includes external legal advice where 
appropriate.  

Risk implications

18. This review identified a significant risk that the councils incurred expenditure 
that had not been adequately approved in accordance with the councils’ 
constitutions.  Immediate action was taken by officers to retrospectively obtain 
formal approval where relevant, and action has been taken to address and 
strengthen the decision-making process on individual projects.   A range of 
actions have been identified and continue to be implemented to improve the 
governance framework, and mitigate any risks arising from this review. 

19. The acting deputy chief executive – transformation and operations will 
continue to update the programme review steering group on a regular basis, 
and will report back formally to the joint audit and governance committee on 
progress against the actions and any related matters when relevant.

ADRIANNA PARTRIDGE
ACTING DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE – TRANSFORMATION AND OPERATIONS

Page 126

Agenda Item 16



APPENDIX 1

Page 127

Agenda Item 16



Page 128

Agenda Item 16



Document is Restricted

Page 129

Agenda Item 18
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	8 Annual report on the councillors' code of conduct
	9 Review of complaints received during 2017/18
	10 South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse audit planning report 2018/19
	11 Corporate fraud and cyber security risk review
	Corporate fraud Appendix 3 Fraud Risk Tracker
	Corporate fraud  Appendix 4

	12 Internal audit activity report quarter four 2018/2019
	13 Internal audit management report quarter four 2018/2019
	IA management report Q4 Appendix 1a
	IA management report Q4 Appendix 1b
	IA management report Q4 Appendix 1c
	IA management report Q4 Appendix 2

	14 Internal audit annual plan 2019/20
	IA annual plan Appendix 1
	IA annual plan Appendix 2 SAA
	IA annual plan Appendix 2 SAA notes
	IA annual plan Appendix 3

	15 Work programme
	16 Programme governance review
	18 Programme governance review - confidential appendix



